WEHEN RECORDED, MAIL 1O
MANX BARBER MSB TR
TRZE S 1800 1 SLO UT $3108

464343 South Highland Prive
Salt ke oy Utah 84117

LIS PENDBENS

NOTICE [S HEREBY GIVEN, pursvant to Utab Code § 7861305 that an action b pending
in the §nited States Bankrupsoy Cosrt for the Distriet of Utal, and [hird Sudicial S}mnci Cout
Salt Lake Coanty, State of Ultah, G outcoma of which will wheet the tithe to or the right«

possession of the real pronestios described herein,

Pooabmant Moy Warren Barber

7o Defendants Advense Parties; HYBRID INTERNATIONAL L LO DAVID KNTUTIRON,
GRAVITY CAPITALL TLC JAMIR MPLWOOD JONSON ¢t al

s

Conart: Brpnted States Bankruptey Coort for the Disgicr of Uah Case Number: 2321749

1 v TR

Third Jodwal District Court Sadt Lake Coundyy State of Utah Cuse Nwmbery 24-0902724 M

4. Clatmant scoks woo

1y Vord Uwerangiu! Bond” Ultady Code 3 38-9- 107 Clase 24.0002

(o) Void tHegal foreelonire sale. arising frovy the Breach of o Court Ordered Stipuiation,

Trustee Sale condueted on or shout Juby 22, 2023




(3 declare apy resulting rrostee’s dead void ab i, and quet tike o the real properties
deseribed beltow in the pame of the Chaimant merit of actions relerenoe:

{1y Nee 2oy BNITTOMGEOY ROF No MG TE40 48

{25 S PO v Dl Koo 200000y B3 TOTIG FUE N

Sew LN ve Gy Mehwood Jodpyon 2o08op G0 35O

3. Propestics AHected: The real propertics aftected by this acton are sdtuated ty the County of

Sali Lake, Stme of Uiab, snd are desoribed a3 Saliows:

013 Cosmmondy hnown as: 4643-95 Seuth Hlishland Drive, Holladay Ural 84137

Fax Parced No.: 220447020000

Lewad Deseription:
BEGIMWNIRNG AT A POINT IN THE CENTER OF MUGHLANDG DRIVE WEST 103 FERT AND
NORTUH I DECOOS WENT TIT 73 PLET FRHOM THE SOUTFORWWES T CORNER OF THE FANY
HEALE O THE ST HEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 4 TONWNSHEP 2 SOUTTH RANGE |
EAST SALTLAKE BASE AND MERIDIAN, AND RENNING THENCE NORTH (4 DEG. GY
WEST &7 33 PROT, THEUNCE NORTH R DUG, PANT 3830 FEET: THENCE SOUTH 4 DEG.

03 FAST 07 3 FERT THENCE SOUTH 89 T80 WEST 35339 FEF T TO BEGINNING. | ¥88

AND EXUEPTING LAND CONVEYED AN THAT CERTAIN WARRANTY [HELD RECORDED
FUILY T8 P9RT Al DNTRY NG 8730 IN BOOK 2310 AT PAGE 1AL LSS AND
EXNCTPTING LAND COMYEYDD TO THAT CERTAIN WARRANTY DEED RECORDBED

NOVERMBUR 27 B0a AN BNTRY NUOL 63300 N 300K 7343 AT PAasGh 118

{2 Commondy Kaown as: 128 South 1906 East, Sal Lake CUity, Utah 84108

P

Pagoe 2ol d
u
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Fax Parcel Noo [E94278100000

Legal Presoriprion:
POT 2 BLOCK 20 vALFCREST HEFGHTS SURDIVISION, ACCORDENG TO THE OFFHOIAL
PEAT THERPEOR ON PHE ANLYOF RECORINVIN THE 5ALT LARKE COUNTY RECORDER™S
OFFICE,

{3} Commonly knowe s 1836 Fast Yale Ave, Sald Lake City Udnb 834118

Tax Parcel No.o: 16-09-42%-005- 4088

Legal Desoription:
POTE, UPPRER YALE THIRD ADDITION, and ALSO COMMENCING AT SGUTHEAST
CORMPR OF SAHLOT 8 THENCE SGUTH 403 P10 THENCE WEST o0 FERT: FHENCE
NORTH G008 FEET THENCE EAST G0 FERT TO THE POINT OF BECGINNING.

DYATTD s 6t day of Agguse, 2025

~~~~~

Mux \,’3:;;5-1’5{;Bm‘hut‘
SENLOorUTAY Sy e

.............

COUNTY OF SALP LAk )
Cin ihis ot day of Avgust, 2008, persanally gpneared before me Max Warren Barber, swha befag
by e didy sworn did say that e s the person whe stgned the foregoing instrursent and
acknowledged to me that ke executed the same.

Notary Puble R

Residing I

{SEALY
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Adam D, Ford {Pro Hac Vice Pending)
Forn & Crane PLLO

130 W, Commonweghth Ave., Ste 204
Salt Lake Uity Litah 847115

Telephone: 215915 4291

Facsinude: 80140717740

adarn. ford forderanelaw . com

Nevada Coansal

deffrey Whitchead (NV Bar #3183
WHITEHEAD & BURNETY

HUHD O Bannon Dnve

Las Vegas, NV 89117

Telephone: 702.267.6300

Facaimile: 702267 6262

Aitaraeys for Max wud Warren Sarber

ENITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
IHSTREICT OF NEVADA

HY BRI INTVERNATHONAL, L1, 6 Toxas
timited Habihiy company: JONATHAN
SUCHULTY, an individual,

Piamtiils,
Vi,
SCOTIA INTERNATIONAL OF NEVADA,
ENC., & Uitah corporation: WARREN
BARBER, an individaal, MAX BARBER. an
pncdividual DOBES TTHROUGH X and ROE

business entities { through X, nclusive,

Defendants,

Clase Noo 214-CVQ2077-JOM-ETY

BEFENDANTS MAX BARBER AND
WARREN BARBER'S RENEWED
MOTION TO VAUATE QR SET ASDE
JUDGMENT

ORAL ARGUMENT REQUESTED

Drefendants Warren Barber and Max Barber {eollectively, the “Individual Defendants™).

trough coussel, move W vacite or set aside the Cowrt’s September 21, 2027 Ovder granting

s
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surnmary judgmeni {ECT Noo 100) and the March 20, 2023 Judgment (ECEF No. 18} awarding
$300.000 against Scotig and $300,000 in punitive damages against all defendants jointdy and
severally, pursuant o Rulds 00{b} of the Federal Rules ol Civil Procedure. This Motion relies on
the facty and tegal authority in the Memorandom of Points and Auathorities below,
Bankruptey Disclosure and Complisnce with Auvtomatic Stay

Max Barberas a debtor in g pending Chapter 13 procecding in the Untied States
Bankruptey Court for the District of Utah, Case No. 23-21749. This Motion, a defensive effort to
vacate # judgment against . does npot violale the automatic stay as it seeks to reduce hability,
benefiting the estate. See fo re Pabmaale Hills Prop, 654 F.3d 868, 874-75 (9th Cir, 20111
Thus, filing and adjudicating this Motion is proper.

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
i Introduciion and Summary

The Court should vacate its March 20, 2023 fudgment (hedgment™ (BECEF No, 108y and
srdertving September 21, 2022 Order granting suramary judamoent (BCF No. 100) pursuant to
Rule 60(bHE) based on newly discovered extraordinary circumstances demonsirating the
Judgment enforces an ilegal scheme orchestrated by Plaintit Jonathan Schudiz, involving
intemational criminal activities. bnforcement of this Judgment 1§ against pabiic policy.
manifestly unjust, and harms innocent third partics. The circumstances in tis case present
precisely the type of situation that warrants such retiefl

Two stgntficant revelions have emerged since the entry of judgment that fundamentally

anderming s validity:

3
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Frrst, overwhelming evidence now dermonstrates that the entire basiness relavonship
underlyving this lawseit was pant of an illegal gold smupeling operation orchestrated by Plaintit
Jonathan Sciuliz. The "carbon fines™ project—which formed the basis of the parties’
relationship and this lawsuit-—was merely a front for unfawiid activities tied to an international
criminal enterprise that violated both TS and South African law. As a matter of public policy

and established legal prineipies, courts will not enforee contracts that further Hegal purposes or
activittes. The Judgment, based on « purported business relutionship rooted in tllegahty, §
therelors unenforceable as o matter of law,

Second, the financial transachons between the parties reveal a complex web of pavments
fSowing in hoth directions that fundamentally contradict the narrative presented to this Court
during the Hugaton.

Recently uncovered evidence shows substantal payvments rom Hybeid-relaied enuties to
Scotia Oncluding hundreds of thoasands of dollars from Schultz’s eriminally indicted companmes
in South Africa), as well as payvments from Scotia to Hybrid and s related ontitics tolaling

356,000, demonstrating that the simplified nareative of a straightforward nvestment and breach
presented to the Court during the onginal proceedings was raterially incompleie and
misicading.

1R BACKGROUND AND STATEMENT OF FACTS
A. The Underlving Business Relationship and Initial Transactions (200%)
Dorothy Barber, the wile of Warren Barber and mother of Max Barber. served as Scoua

International of Newvada, Ine.”s ("Seatia™) Chiet Firancial Officer until Ociober 2021, exclusively

tad
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managing its financial operations and bank accounts. (Max ecl., ¥ 33 Warren, whose experuse
was Tocused on field operations, did not handle Scotia’s finances and deferred all financial
maiiers o Dorothy, (Max Decl. ® 35 Max was freguently abroad, notably in Dubat during this
pertod, and was ce'ed on convnunications regarding payment requests and invoices from Hyhrid
International, LLOC CHvbrid™) (Max Decl, € 6) Max was aware that paymeats were being
requested and made o Hybrid and belicved these invanees were legittmate and justified for actual
work performed, assuming Dorothy and Warren were fully managing Scatia’s Bnancial and
operational aftairs. {Max Decl. % 6--7). Max was unaware of any deposiis into Scolia’s
aceounts, particularty those from indicted Souath African companies, a8 Dovothy controlled all
incoming transactions, {Max Decl, ® 8). The bdivideal Defendants trusted Dorothy implicitly w
manage Scotia’s fnancial affairs, a responsibility she had reliably held for decades, (Max Decl,
4 4y, Unknown w them. Borothy began experiencing symptoms of carly-onset demeniia as carly
as 2018, tater diagnosed after a serics of min strokes, which impaired her ability o properly
investigate or document transactions, (Max Decl., 8 9). Warreri was not managing financoes at all,
focusing sotely on ficld operations, a fact Max did not realize at the time. £Max Decl., % 5).

b eardy 2619, Plamtiffs Hybnd and Jonathan Schultz ("Schalte™) imtiated discussions
with Scotia regarding a purported “carbon fines™ project. On Aprit 1, 2019, Schultz emailed the
Individual Defendants, stating, “On the side 'm wanting © send gobd o the USA so tong to get
moving on a few fronis.” {See bExhibit 2, page 2 The following day. Apnil 20 2019, Schuits sent
another email expliciily outlining his plans: 1 am also going to start shipmng material from

South Africa to the USA and o on. This we can add w our Business venture.” He Durther
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mentioned, " To add to the equation, Um wanting 10 set up a gold and diamond office in Las
Vegas where we can so long eoter the market on the jewellery side and start acquiring market
share.” (See Exhibit 2, Schalte Emadl dated April 2, 2009y, These emails reveal that what
appeared to he a legitimate businoss verture was 2 facade tor an iHegal gold smuggling operation
from South Afried to the United States.

Notubly, as acknowledged v the June 13, 2024 letier froot fan Levitt Aftorneys (on
bebalf of their client Schultz) to BusinessDay, Scholie left South Afvics in Apdl 2019
approximately twvo mestihs belore the inftial $306,000 transtor from Hybid o Scota and before
any South Africsn legal docoments mentioned bim. This timang is eritical: Schulir had already
established his departure from South Africa precisely whe he hegan engaging with the
Individual Defendants regarding the purported “carbon fines™ project.

Schubtz remained abroad for two vears before he was first mentioned in any Sourh
Adpican legal documents 1n November 2021, This sequence demonstrates that Schaltz was
methodically establishimg ULS. operations while deltberately distaneing lamset! from Sowuth
Admea, furthey sapporung the conclasion that the entire basiness relationship was designed as a
vehicle for moving funds between purisdictions,

fr May 2019, Schulty established e Ling Internatonal LLC in Nevada, concurrent
with negotiatons with Scotia, but did not disclose this entity 10 the Barbers. Corporate records
alsor show Schuliz’s attorneyvs listed as officers or agents for several entities. tneluding Schulie
Reliners LLC and Hybnd International LLC, raising questions sbout their awareness of his itlicit

operations.

k]
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0 dune 13, 2019, Hyhid wived $3000000 to Scotia as a purported investment. The next
day, June T4, 2019, Hybnd Dlamonds and Gold (Puy) Lid, a South African company later
indicted for ifegal gold trading, wired 5234970 (o Scotia froo Flrstrand Bank in South Adrica.
{Mee Bxbibil 3, Scoua Wells Fargo Bank Stalement), Additional wire transfers came from an
Eliofoy account, o company where Schudiz was a director, which rented promises osad for iflegal
goid transactions. (See Bxhibit 43 Max was unaware of these deposits. as Dorothy managed adl
neoming fransacitons, {Max Decl, 8 8). Between June 27 and September 30, 2019, Scotia paid
S350,000) 1o Plainifts” entities, as detatled in Secion I (Ex 4).

Max was aware of these payments through comroarneabions bt believed they were for
legitimate work, unaware of Dorothy's demoentiz-impaired oversight or the siliclt nature of the
deposits. {Max Decl, 18 6, 14) These transactions, managed by Dorathy, wore not properly
inveshigsted or documented due to her eognitive dechine, (Max Decl % 101

Hyhrid Diamonds and Gold {Pty) Lido—the very South-African entity that wived R
234970 (= UN $234,970) Into Scolia’s account on 14 June 20191y specilically named in
Paragraph 5.4 of the Sulfontein Magistrate™s Court "Warrant for Arrest and Scizure” dated 3
November 2021 hists “201 306967107 HYBRID DIAMONDS AND GOLIY (Prv Lid™ smong
the targets. Even Schulte’s own attorney s acknowledge this fact 1o thelr June 13, 2024 letier o
BasinessDay, confirming that this comparty was hsted 1n the “Warram for Arrest and Selzare.”
The fetter Burther admits that Sclhudtz was a director of compardes nvelved in the South African
investigation, particularly noting he was a “previeus director” of a company responsible for

rental agreements regarding pronmises used by Gregory Fowrie "o conduct his tHegal pold

6
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transactions,” These admissions cstablish direet corporale connections between Schultr’s [LS.
eperations, his South Adrican business interests, and comparies specificatly named in South
African eripinal investigabions. andesscoring the inextricable connection between Plaintifis’
L8, operations and alleged crinvinad conduoct abroad, and further suppariing vacawr of a
ssdgmaers that would wid antinfernational money-aundering schome.

fn Augast 2019, Schudiz sold gold bars to Status Collection & Co. Ine. for over $48G.000,
as evidenced by invoices from Hybrid International LLC dated Augast 19, 2019, (See bBxhibius 7
arsd 8, Hybrid International tovoices and Bank Statement). Jeremiah Spelman of Status
Collection stated that Schultz described labeling precious metals shipments as “carbon fines™ to
expedife them and latled w provide importioustoms paperwark, concluding that Schaliz
srnuggled pold into the U8, to further his eniminal activities. {See bExhibit 6, Spelman
Statement). This confirms the “carbon fnes™ project was g cover oy dlegad gold smmugubing.

. South African Uriminal Developments and Commencement of US Litigation

(201

U MNovember 8, 2019, Gregorie Fourie, an employee of Cham Bridging {a company
owned and divected by Schuliz), was arrested in South Africa as part of the “(hnger”
mvestigaton e 1Hegal gold trunsactions, Authorities seized vnwrought gold worth B300,000,
RU0GO00 10 cash, and goid transaction notes reflecting RIS miflion i illegal transactions.
(Docwuent, p. 133 That same day, Schuliz registered Mybeid Duernational 1.LC i Flarida,
appoinling asseorates David Conute and Nicholas Kelly as officers, suggesting an attemgpt (o

cregte corporate fayers amid increasing legal scratiny, (Document, p. 281

i
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On November 21, 2009, just days afier Fourie's arrest, Platntilts Dled this lawswit against
scotia, alleging broach of comtract and wisrepresentation. {Documerit, p. 13). The snong
sugzesis Schuliz sought to sever ties with his mining operattons and recover funds related 1o his
iliegal souvities through the U8, Tegal systenn Fellowing these events, Schuliz abrupthy
reinvented bimsedl as an artisy, abandoning Bis muning ventures. {Document, p. 13)

€, Litigation Progress and Forther Criminal Activities (2019)

Crr July 30, 2020, Sehulie Reliners, LLC {8 Texas company) was volantarly dissabved,
shortly after its South African counterpart was indicted. (Docurpent, p. 143 On Aogust 3, 20240,
Plaintit?y filed their Fiest Amended Complatot, alleging breach of contract against Scotia and
ntentional misrepresentation agairst Scota, Warrer, and Max Barber, based oo elatms that the
fndividaal Delendanis induced Hyheid s S300.000 investment, which Scoua fuled 1o repay.

(RO 46, %9 31-42).

After Scotia and the Individual Defeadants faled fo vroely respond to Plainatiy’
Reguests for Admission, the Court deemed the requests admitted. (ECE 71} The Individual
Defendants” attempt (o withdraw these adodsstons was unsueccessfull (HOF 77, 833 No lurther
discovery occurred. {Document, p. 143

As detailed in Rection LU, Seuth Afncan authorities 1ssued ¢ warrant for Schuliz’s grrest
on November 3, 2021, for over 1409 charges, with Hybrid DHamonds and Gold also todieted.
{Ix. 9}

The legal proceedings related o Schulte bave followed a conplex path. As

~

acknowledged in correspondence frorn Schalte’s own attorneys dated Jane 13, 2024, on March
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31, 2022, South African aathorities stated they wouldd seek Schuits’s extradition, with the matter
initially postponed to July 11, 2022, By that date, certain charges mighi then have been
provisionally withdrawn. Schultz then brought an application betore the Gauteng Division of the
High Court under case mumiber 2022-002804, secking procedural rights regarding any potential
gxtradition requesi. While the High Court initally rejected Schultz’s arguments about which
state functionary could make such an extradiion regquest, the Supreme Cowrt of Appeal
subsequently npheld his postiion, confirming that only the Mimster of Justice couold Jawiully
initiate such a request. This procedura ruling has effectively delayed formal extradition

procecdings throogh technical beg

o

a maneuveriog, allowing Schultz to remain in the United
States winde continuing o benefit from this Court’s judgment. The claborate legal procecdings in
South Alfrica. combined with Schultz’s lmmigration case in Nebraska, demonstrate a caleulated
strategy to remain bevond the reach of South African authoniies while using the ULS. legal
system o recover funds related to his South Afmcan operations.

Notably, even Schultz’s own attorneys have acknowledged his connection to these
mvestigations. In therr June 13, 2024 letter to BusinessDay. they adoit that Schudtz was Hsted in
a South Adrican affidavit as part of the ballet point stating “{ilhe following individoals and
entities form part of the investigation.” While the letter attempts to distinguish between being

“part of the tnvestigation™ and heing a “suspect,” this admission nevertheless confirms Schuitz
involvement with the very conpantes and trapsactions under criminal investigation in South
Africa, The faet that the South African government continues to scek Schulte’s extradition

speaks for itseil. The direet partial adoussion divectly coanects Schultz to the guestionable
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activitivs underlving this case and contradiots the narrative presented o this Court during the
ariginal procecdings--that Schuly was simoply an invesior with a legitimate business interest in a
“parbon fines” project.

D, Summary Judoment and Final Judgment {2021--2023)

On Septomber 23, 2021, Plamtils moved for sugwmary judgment, citing the admined
Requests w argoe no disputed facis existed. (BECF 85, pp. 2--10), On September 21, 2022, the
Court granted suninary judpment against Scolia for breach of coniract and against the Individual
Defendants for infertivnal misrepresentation. (FCF 1601 In fis Order, the Court found that s
vabid and enfurceable contract exasied between the partios™ and that “plaintiffs sulfered damages
when Scobia refused o return the $300,000™ (BECE 100, p. 11, The Court also determined that all
defendants made false representations “with the intention plaintiffs would rely on them and pay
defendants the $500,000 under thetr contract™ {BECEF 100, p. 14).

Omn Mareh 26, 2023, the Cowrt entered final Jodgment, awarding Plaintiifs $300 004
against Seotia and $560.000 in puniiive damages against Seova, Warren, and Max, jointly and
severally (LCEF 1083 The Court’s Order on monetary judgment (BCE 107) stated that
“pompensatory damages in the amount of 83000000 are appropriate for plaiatiffs” breach of
contract ¢laim™ and that “pusitive damapes for defendants” intentional misrepresentation in the
amount ol $300.000 are appropriate”™ ander NRS 42,005, The Coart speafically noted that
“plaintifs gave Scotia $300,000 pursuant 10 a valid, enforceable conract, Scotia did not

perform, and plaintifis reeerved no benefit theretrom.” (ECF 107, p. 2h

i
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The new evidence of iliegality and Hinancal transactions, detatled w Seetion b,
undermines the Court’s findings on the contract’s enforceability and damages. (LCF 167).

E. Collection Efforts and Discovery of Dorothy Barber’s Condition (2023

Following the Mareh 20, 2023 Judgment, PlamnGls aggressively sursued collection,
domnesticating the Judgment 1o New York and LUltah, obtaining writs of exeoution, garnishment,
and attachiment, recording hens, and Hiling fraudulent transfer Tawsuits. (See Max Decl 98 17,
Plaintiffs” actions included seizing personal #ems from Max's family, such as a Mother’s Day
eard, cash. jewddry, elething, and elecironie eguipment needed by Max's special needs deoghter,

with setzed property valoed over $400 000, including an aiverafl and 1 1974 Porsche. (Max

Decl,, 9% 18, 22).

As noted in Section LAL Dorothy Barber’s earlv-onset demeniia, disgnosed in muid-2023
after sympiorms began 1o 2018, impaired her ability (o masage Scotla’s fnances, including the
336,000 payrocnts 1o Phantiffs, {Max Decl %9 10, 16}

F. Further Developments and Diseovery of Critical Evidence (2024--2028)

Dorvothy Barber passed awdy on January 15, 2024, (Max Dieel, € 12) In March 2024,
while reviewing Dorothy's files and records following her passing. Max Barber discovered
comprehensive financial records showiag that Dorothy had caused Seotia o make Hve separale
payments totaling $356,000 © Pladetiffs in 2019 (the 2019 Payments™ )y (Max Decl, % 13) Max
was aware m 2019 of these payments through communications regarding inveices bul belicved
they were Jegitimate and pusitfied for work performed, assunung Dorothy and Warren were

properly managing Scotia’s atfairs. (Max Decl, 8% 3-0) Uniil this discovery, Max was entirely

{1
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mnaware of the depesits from Hybeid and indicted South Afvican companies, soch as Hybnd
Dhamonds and Gold (Piy ) Lid, inte Scotia’s accourys, as Dorothy exclusively controlled
incoming transactions. {Max Decl, 15

Daorethy exclasively managed Scotia’s financial operations and bank accounts, (Max
Decl % 3 Warren Barber, whose expertise and responsibilifios were entirely focused on field
operations, had pever handled Bcotia's finances and did not comprebend the fnancial
conymunications sent (o him, consistently deferring these matiors o Dorothy, (Max Decl ., 54).
Max was freguently abroad, nodably in Dubai and was oc’ed on pavment-related
communications but had no knowledge of deposits or reason o gquestion the legitimaey of
imvolces. {(dax Decl, 9% 6, 83 The Individual Deferdants trusted Dorothy toplicitly (o manage
Beoba's financial alfairs, a responsibility she had reliably held tor decades. (Max Dec., £ 4).
However, unknowr o the individua! Defendants, Dorotns cognative abilines were
deteriorating due 1o carly-onset dementia, disgoosed afier she suitered g series of mini strokes,
with syraptoms tkely beginoing as carly as 2018, (Max Dech, 4 105 Consaguently, Dorothy was
merely recelving and responding o inveices withouot proper investigation, documentation, or
meaningfid communication with the Individoal Defendunis. (Max Deel | % 1)

Upon reviewing the complete Gnancis records in March 2024, Max Barber realized that
Schudiz had effectively orchestraied the return of Hyhrid s entive 8300,000 tnvestment plos an
additional $36,000 througl paymenis lnked to et deposits, hetfore filing this lowswit claiming

o

Seotia had failed to repay the investment. (May Decl., % 141 May also discovered that the

2
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invaices he balieved wore fegitimate were not for actoad work, s Dorothy™s dernentia had
nputred her oversight. OVl DeelL € 13)

The financial cecords reveal o complex web of transfers that fundimentally contradict the
simphfied narrative presented e this Court during Higation. In total, Scolia made live separate
payrnenis elaling $356,000 1o Plagudis und their refated entities between Jane 27, 2019, and
Septeynber 30, 2019 gust waeks after receiving Hybrid s initial $300,000 fnvestment. These
pavroents incleded: {1 $230.400 {0 Seboliy Reliners LLC on June 27, 3019, {2 STI 000 1o
Hybrid International LLC o Jane 13, 20090 (31 563,000 1o Hybnd International LLC on Aupust

23, 2009 (4) $38.000 o Hvhrid International T1.C on September 11, 2019; and {3 $131.000 10

seate toal of these outhourud

;
2

Hybrid International {10 on Sepiember 30, 2019, The aggre
pavrmenis exceeds the intound nvestment by 36,000, domonstrating that, contrary to the claims
i this lawsut, Plaimuls nol onby recovered their entire invesiment but reeesved an additional
536,000 before ever filing this action,

These Dnancial records directly contradiet the Cowrt’s findings i its Mareh 20, 2023
Order (ECEF 107) that “plaintifts gave Scotia $300.000 pursaant o a vahd, enforceable contract,
Seotta did not perform, and plaiotiils recetved no benefit therefrom.” The evidence now shows
that plaint s received their entire investmment back. plus an addittoval $56,000, rendenng the
Court’s finding of damages hased on Scotta’s fatore to return the B5300,000 tuewally meorrect,

Further evidenee emerged lughliphting Schulty’s thegal operations, particularly through

tank records demnonstrating that on luse 14, 2019-—jast one day affer Hybrid's inttial $300,000

granster- Hybrid Eramonds and Gold (Piy) Lid, s Soath Afvican company later indicted for
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ilegal pold trading, wired an addiional $234 970 to Scotia, (See Fxhibit 4, Wells Fargo Bank
Statemzert). This direct Onancial hnk, unknown to Max uptl 2024 sirongly saggests the entire
“carbon fines” project was a front for laundering proceeds from illegal pold trading activities,
{Max Decl % 135).
Significant additional developowsats have emerged regarding Scholte’s iHegal operations
and his high-stakes efforts (o evade lepal accountability 1n South Afnca. The State wants o
extradiie Schults from Lax Vegas, where he has been living a glamorous Bife since 2019, 6y stand
trial Tor chargesooclading contraverung the Prevention of Organised Crime Act and the Precious
Metals Act, as well as thelt and fraud. While he evades these serious charges, he has hoen
portrayed as a “celebrity artist”, protured alongside legendary actor Robert de Niro.
Schultz has engaged in protracted litigation in South Africa to frustrate bis extradition.
The Supreme Court of Appeal (SCA) which ruled that only the justice minister, not the National
Proscoating Agthority (NPA), had the pewer to request an exiradition. This ruling, however,
ercated a stgnificant problem tor the South Advican government, as i left 89 other pending
extradition regquests i jeopardy
Faced with this enisis, Seath Africa’s Natonal Direotor of Peblic Prosecutions (INDPP),

Shamtla Batohy, made a “sharp about-turn™. Adier initidly indicating the stete would drop its

Souath Africa’s highest court—-{o continge the legal battle. The NDPP siated that the “interests of

bad

Justive favour the reinstatoment of the appeal™ and that #owas an “errer™ o consider dropping i,
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because the NPA's pending extradivion reguests “carnot simply be reissued without an
exeeptional amount of labour and delay.”

This series of events demonstrates that Schultz is not the subject of a minor oy dormant
investigation. Rather, ke is at the very cenier of a high-stakes legal battle 1o South Africa’s
highest courts, a battle South African authorities are determined 1o win to ensure he faces justice
and 1o preserve the bilegrity of their entire extradition system. These {facts, combined with his
filing of an immigration case in the ULS, District Court of Nebraska (Case No. 4:24-0v-03066) on
April 8, 2024 conlirm his caleulated stratepy to use every available means o shield himself
from prosecution white simultancouasly using this Court’s judgoment for his financial heneiin

in Jane 2024, the respected South Adrican publication BusinessDay detatled Schadte’s
deliberate escape to Las Vegas specifically to evade prosecution, reporting on the active efforts
of South African sughorties to extradite him. As reported i a March 2024 article discussing
South Afncan extradition proceedings, “The Stale wanis to extradite the South African-bor
artist from Las Vegas, where he has besn living a glamorous ife, rubbing shoulders with the rich
aned famows, stace 2019, to stand trial alongside a group charged with contravening the
Prevention of Orpanized Crime Act and the Precious Metals Act, as well as theft and lraud.”
{Exhibit 12)' This confirms the serious nature of the criminal charges Schubie faces in South
Adrica and his caleslated efforts to remain beyaond the reach of South African suthorities while

using this Cowrt’s judgment to his tinancial benefit. (Exhibit 11,

" Alsa found at https)/fwww news24d.conysouthafrica/news/ndpp-shamila- batohis-abiout-turn-in-
wynchpin-extradition-case- 20250324
i35

14419279 B: 11591 P: 2946 Page 18 of 98




N ey ay
et 'L.'L.n

Parly in 2024, the UK, Department of Homeland Sceourity approached the Individual
Dietendants seeking their conperation i a comprehensive mvestigation into Jonathan Schulte's
tlegal activities. iU was this approach that gave Defondartds the Brst hint of the depth of Schulu’s
tHegal schemie mwhich they were ricked bito heing an umwitting paet of, Alongside sublicly
avaitable South Adrican Cowrt Diocwnents, these revelations ave cortfimmed Schudtz’s extensive
volvement it illegal enterprises directly linked to the underlying vontracts in this lawsuit, (Max
Decl % 20)

Sehultr’s pattorn of corporale resiructuring further evidences delibergie atiempis 1o evade
fegad aeeountability. Notably, on November 8, 2019 the exact day his associate Gregornie
Fourte was arrested for the Stilfontern gold robbory--Sehultr registered Hybrid ndernational
LLC in tlorida, appointing assogiates David Comite and Nicholas Kelly as officers, This
registration’s fiming strongly indicaies a caleulated effori W create corporate lavers 1n response
to tightening legal serutiny.

Jerermiah Speliman, wha direetly engaged with Sebudian 2019, provided & statement
confirming Schulte™s Hepal activities, Spelman stated tha Sehulty cxplichidy mentioned
expediting precious metal shipments by falsely labeling thern as carbon fines and repeatedly

failed o provide required cusioms docarsentation, clearly indicating that Schuliz smuggled gold
mto the U8, furthering W oriminal setivities through American entities. (See Exhibit 6,
Spelman Matoment).

Schudiz’s deliberate use of various name permwtations, the frequent dissolution and

retnearporation of companies across multiple jurisdictions, and the setive involvenment of

6
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Schuliz’s aftoraeys as officers in numerous entilies raises serious questions aboat thor
knowledge and compliciy ot hus broader tHepal opemtions.

Clarporate records revaid Sendtz estabhished Fine Line Intornatioonad 1LLC o Nevada in
May 2019, concurrently negotiating with Scobig, but be nover disclosed this entity o the Barbers.
Schultz's attorneys were potably Histed as officers or agoenis for several of these entities,
incinding Schuliz Refiers LLE and Hybrid Intermabonal LLC, ralsing further suspicion
regarding thelr swareness of Schalie’s extensive tHiicit operatinns.

Ultimately. these detaded discoveres comprehensively ilusirate thar Scholie’s pursuit of
this lawsait was fundamentaily part of 2 browdes, cateulated scheme W explont the LES, Tegal
system to faunder and recover funds associated with ilegal gold smuoggding and related criminal
enderprises in both the US and Sowd Afriea

Fil. EEGAL STANDARD FOR RULE 606{b}6) RELIKEF

Rude 60(h) 6] “pives the district cowrt power to vacate jodigmens whenever sach action is
apprapriade o accamplish yastice.” fenson v Fidd Nar' 0 P, Tee 943 FAG 434, 443 (9th (i
201 9) (hndernal citations amitied. ). “Rule 60(bY6) serves as “a granad reservoir of equitable power
to do justice in a particular case’. Jehasoa v Spencer, 930 F . 3d 680, 700702 (10th Cir, 2020
angd 38 sevailable 1o all civil wettons, ant just those that cao be characterized as “equitable”™ actions,
Courts should liberally construe this power in favor of the party secking relief from judgment so
substantial justiee may be accomphished, See, Moore v Federal Practioe $ 6048 (3d ed. 20203,

fndeed. district courts bave both the power and the duty to “vacate judgmenis whenever sach
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action is appropriate to accomplish justice.” Phefps v, dlumeddde, 569 F .33 1120, 1135 (9th Cir,
009y

The Supreme Cournt has established that reliel under Rule 60(b ¥{6) requires a showing of
“extraordinary clireumstances.” Gonsales v Crosby, 545 US, 524, 835 (2003). So long as a
moviint shows “exiraordinary circumsianees”™ jstifving the reopeniog of a final judgment, clause
{6}, like Rule 60(b) generally, “shoukd be Bberally applied to sttustions not covered by the
preceding fve claoses [found in the rule] so that . | the district court . .| has power to gram
reliel from & judgment whenever, undser all the serrounding circomstances, such action is
appropriate m the furtheranee of justice.™ Henson, 943 F.A3d at 443 (quoting Fleming v Gulf Qi
Crorp., 547 B.2d 908, 912 {10th Cie, 19773 see also Good Luck Nursing Home, Ine. v, Harvis,
30 F.2d 372, 377 (D0 Cirs 1980) (Rude 60(h) was intended to preserve the delicate balance
between the sanctity of iinal judgmuents and the incessant cormnmand of the cowrt’s conscience that
justice be done in fight of all the facts.”) (Intornal citations omitted. ).

“Extraordinary ciecumsiances occir where there are other compelling reasons for opening
the judgment that prevented the movant from rasing the basts of he motion during the pendency
of the case.” Martinez v, Shina, 33 1 4th 1234, 1262 (9th Cir, 20223 (eitation and intemal
quotation marks omsited ) Such circumstances axist where a party “presents a previously
anchiselosed fret so central o the bigation that it shows the imilal judgment (o have been
mantesty unjust.” Peuple for the Ethical Treatment of Avidmals v US Dep 't of Health and
Fumicer Servs., 226 V. Supp. 3d 39,47 (D.D.C 2017), This s true “even though the onginal

fiture to present that information was inexeusable.”™ Jd, (eriation omitted).
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The Ninth Cuouli has recognized that Rule 6((bX6) relief is particularhy warranted where
“H 18 no longer equiiable that the judgment should have prospective application.™ Jeff 13 v
Kemynhorne, 365 F 3d 844, B31-52 (9ih Cir, 2004},

Additionally, “{iihe case for reconsideration s espectally strong where the eftect of the
error, if not corrected, woold be to harm the interests of thivd parties, as opposed Lo the erring
litigant.” People for the Ethical Trearment of daimels. 226 . Supp. 3d at 47.

Caourls will not enfores contracts that are slegal or against public palicy. “No court will
lend (s assistance in any way owands carrving out the terms of an iHegal contract. In case any
action is brought in which it 18 necessary to prove the iHegal contract in order to maintain the
action, couris will not entoree W Kaiser Steel Corp v Midiine, 455 UK 72, 77 (1982 {nternal
citation onutted. ) C7H s also well established. .. that a federal court has a duty w deternune
whether a contract violates federal law before enforeing ity

The Supreme Cowt of Nevada has Hkewise held that Nevada contract law diciates that
courts should not enforce contracts made for iflegal purposes. Nevada follows the general rule
that “coniracts made in contravention of the faw do not create a right of action.” Loomiy v. Lange
Fin, Corp 109 Nev, 1121, 865 P.2d 1161 {1893, quoting Fincert v, Santa Cruz, 98 Nev, 338,
241,647 P2 379, 381 (1982). ("No court should be required to serve as paymaster of the wages
of crime™) {(Internal citation omuitted.)

IV,  ARGUMENT
A, Extracrdinary Circumstances Warrant Relief Under Rude 68(h){(6)

Two extraordinary circuamstances warmant relicl under Rule sO(b)(6) in this case:

|G
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1y The Judgment Bs Based on an llegal Scheine and Is Therefore Unenforceable

The newly discovered evidence of Jonathan Schuliz’s criminal erderprise renders the
Judgment unenforceable as a matter of Taw. 1 is a bedrock principle of American jurisprudence
that courts will not enforce contriets that further 1Hegal purposes. The evidence now
demonsiraies that the entire business relattonship belween the parties was predicated on an
iltegal scheme to smugpie gold from South Africa to the United States:

Schaolte’s can ernails exphieitly discuss shupping gold from South Alriea to the Umited
States as part of the business relationship with the Individuat Befendants.

Hank records show g wire transfor from Hybrid Diamands and Geld {(Pty) Lid---a South
African company now indicted for iffogal gold trading---10 Scotia on June 14, 2019, just one day
after Hybrid's initial $300.000 jovestment. This timing and patern of transactions strongly
sugeests the funds were part of a money taundering operation.

South African authoritics have charged Schulte with over 1,409 charges related 1o thelt,

frand, money taundering, and iliegal dealing 10 precious metals, The South African High Court
condimmed Schulie’s involvement in this eriminal enterprise in Case Namber 2022-002804
(Fxhibits 5, 11) The matter is of such importance that Sooth Africa’s Nationad Director of Public
Prosecutions has revived an appeal to the nation’s Constitutional Cowrt 1o ensure Schulte’s
extradition see Exhibit 12,
Jeremiah Spelman, who purchased gold from Schulty in August 2319, has provided a

stgtement confirming that Schultz described using “carbon fines™ as a cover for expediting

3
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precious metals shipments and refused 1o provide customs documentiiion for the gold he had
brought into the United States and sold to Spelman.

The L5, Department of Homeland Secwrity has approached the Individual Defendants
secking cooperation in an opgoing Investigation into Schudtz’s illegal aotvities.

This evidence directly contradicts the Court’s finding in fts Septernber 21, 2022 Order
(ECE 1OG) that "o valid and enforcesble contract existed between the parties.” ax ilegal contracts
are neither vahd nor enforceable under both federal and Nevada Ll

Thiz evidenee establishes that the “carbon fines™ praject was not ajegiimate business
vertare but rather a from for iflegel gold smuggling. The Court should not enfvree a judgment
that would reward Sehulie for his iHegal conduet and enable ham (o profit from his erinunal
activities,

The Ninth Cireuit has consistently refused to enforce contracts that facifitae iHegal
activity. See Baesidii v. Goe, 413 F 3d 928 936-37 (Oth Cir, 2005 tholding that contracts that
wiotate public policy, neluding those that lzeditate Hkegal conduet, are unenforeeable).
“Contracts made 1y contraventiost of the bow do not ereate a right of action” Loomis v Lange
Fia, Corp, 109 Nev, TE21, 863 P.2d 1161 (19931 Nevada courts refuse to be arbiters of disputes

1
b

arising from illegal agreements, as doing so would undermine public policy. £
The parties” refatiorshup was fundmmentally premised on an illegal seheoe. makiog any

nurported contract or agreement between them void and unenforceable. The Judgment, which

entorees obligations arising frony this tHegal relationship, must therefore be set aside.
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23 The Intevests of Third Parties Are Being Harmed
The case for reconsideration is “especially strong where the offect of the error, i not
corrected, would be tn hanm the nierests of thied parties, ay opposed o the erring tigant”

People for the Ethical Troatsent of dnimads, 226 F. Supp. 3d at 47, Here, Plaimn iy’ aggressive

Y

oliection efforts have directdy harmed tanocent third parties, inclading Maxs wife and chiidren.
Plamtitls have setwed peesonal tems belonging to Mux's wile and children, including o Muother's
Pay card, jewelry, clothing, and electrome equipment needed by Mux™s special needs daughier
for sehool. These actions demonstrate the significant harm being inflicted on innocent third
parties as a result of the hudgment.,

Farther allowing Schudtz @0 contirae © profit from collecting on the judgment issoed Iy
this Court enables him to continue to evade extradition and avoid facing the eriminal charges he
frces in South Africa. The effect of the Judgment i3 1o assist a fugitive from justice frasirate the
prosecution of the law for the benefit of the people of Bouth Africa-—and allows Schultz o
eondinge to engage in dubious bosiness activities 1n the Untled States

The Individoal Defendants Could Neot Have Raised These [ssues Dunng the Peadency of

The ndinndual Detendanis condd not bave ratsed these issaes during the pendency of the
case because they were anaveare of the true natare of Schueltz’s operations and the extent o his
crinunal activities until after the Judgmoent was entered. The fudl extent of Schulie’s crimunal
enterprise only came o light after the Judgment was entered, when the LS, Departmaent of

Homeland Secortty approached the Tadividual Defendants 1 late 2024, Sehultz debberately

N
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concealed his criminal actvitics rom the Cournt and the Individual Defendants during the
litigation,

Addivonally, the evidence of Dorothy Barber™s dementia and the comprehensive
financial records showing Scotia’s repavoent of the entire $300,000 plus an additional $56.000
only came o hght after Borothy™s passing o Japuary 2024, when Max Barber discoverad these
records while going through her {tes in March 2024, This crucial evidence, which direetly
contradiets the Couwrt’s finding (hat “plaint s suffered damages when Scotia refused to return
the $500.0007 (HCEF 100, p. 1), wax unavailable during the pendency of the case.

Fyven if Delendanis could have raised these issues carlier. relief i3 warranted under Rule
(b6} when provieusly undisclosed facts show the judgment to be maatfestly unjust, a3
discussed in Section K. Sce, Peaple for the Erhical Treatment of Animals. 226 T, Supp. 3d a1 47.

B. The Judgment Creates Unjost Enrichment and a Double Recovery

The Maintiffs have already recovered more than they invested. even before counting the

collections they have achioved in atticmpting to enforce the judgment. The uncontested banking
records tell a simple story: lebound: On 13 June 20019 Hybrid Intermnational LLC wired US
F300.0060 10 Scotia. Outhoursd: Between 27 June 2019 and 30 September 2019 Scotia remitied a
total of LS $556.000 back to the same plainiifl group—cuomprised of {a) US 3230.000 to Schultr
Refiners LLC on 27 June 2019, and (b) four payments to Hybnd Infernational LLC of US
$72,000 (13 June 2019), LIS 863,000 (23 Aug 20193, US $38.000 (11 Sept 2019), and LIS
$131,000 (30 Sept 2019} The aggregate outhound paymenis thas exceed the mbound 1nvestmsent

by US §56,008, Plaimiift suffered no daroages at all.

[
Lea
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Trus financial evidence divectly contradicts the Court’s findings in its Mareh 20, 2023
Order {ECT 1067) that “compensatory damages i the amount of $360.000 are appropriate for

.

plaitiils’ broach of confract cluot™ because "plaintills gave Scotia 3300.000 pursuant to a valid,
enforceable contract, Scotia did not perform, and plainti{fs received no benetTt therefrom.”

oo wires from Elioflex (Pry) Lid (US $S174,000 and US $102.6006) and the US $234 970
wire frown Hybrid DRamonds and Gold (Pry ) Lad came from South-African compames that are

neither plantiids nor assignees of Hybrid toternatonal LLC. Phose wanslers cannot form the

basts of Hybnid's claimed damages b this Court. Allowing the hudgment to stand therelore

perotts Plainti iy to “double-dip,” recovering their 8300.000 invesument plus the $36,600
premivm already retumed-— an incguitable windfall squarely forectosed by Rale 60(bx6)
jurisprudence.?

Recause Plaintf?s have already been made whoele (and more), enforcement of the
Judgruent produces precisely the kind of unjost enrichmoent that Role 60(h &) exists o prevent
Equity therefore demands that the Judgroent be vacated

C. Timeliness of the Motien

This moeton s broapht within a reasonable time atter the discovery of the new evidenee.
The Tadbvidal Deferdasts ondy became aware of the {ull extent of Schultz’s enmunal enterprise
alter the LS. Department of Homeland Securniiy™s approach in lawe 2024 and sobseguent

investigaton ito publicly avatable South Alnican court records. The evidence of Scotia’s return

of the $300.000 plus an additional 356,000 was only discovered in March 2024 after Dorothy

24
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Barber's passing. Given these extracrdinary circumstances, the timing of this maotion is
reasonable and justified.
Y. CONCLUSION

Based on the forsgoag. the individoal Defendants respectfidy request that the Count
vacels or set aside the March 20, 20623 Judgment (ECEF No. HIB)Y and the underlying September
21,2022 Order granting swnmary judgment (ECF No. 100). As the Ninth Cireuit has recogrized,
Rude 60(b)6) serves as “a grand roserveir of equitable power to do justics in a particular case™
amed should be “liberally apphed™ to “accomplish justice.”3

The newly discovered evidence of the illegal nature of the parties” business relationship
constitites the type of extraordinary arcumstance that warrants reliel under Rule 64(h¥a). In
fact, the Court must “vacate judgments whenever such action is appropriate 1o accomplisit
Jusiice.”4 Soch s the present ease,

To allow this judgment 1o stand would reward Schuliz for an ilegal scheme thai
cxploited this Cowt’s processes, undermining both justice and public polioy. As the Nevada
Supreme Court has recognized, Nevada contract law dictates that courts should not enforce
contracts magde for ilegal purposes.S

For these reagons, the Individual Defondants request that the Court vacate the Judgmoent,

stay its enforcoment pending harther proceedings, and permit discovery inte these eritical issues.

DATED this 26th day of hune, 2023.

M58 Jelirey Whitehead

Jefirey Whitehead (NV Bar #3183)

7
b

(¥4
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WHITEHEAD & BURNETT
6980 O Bannon Drive Las
Vegas, NV 89117
Telephone: 702.267.6500
Jetfl@wwhiteheadburnett.com

Adam D. Ford (Pro Huc Vice Pending)

FORD & {IrANE PLLC

150 W, Commuonwealth Ave., Sie 204

Salt Lake City, Utah 84115

Telephone: 213.915.4291
adam.ford@forderanclaw.com

Aitorneys for Defendants Muax and Warren Barber

26
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, the undersigned, certify that on the 26th day of June, 2023, 1 caused a true and corret
copy of the foregoing MOTION TO VACATE ORSET ASIDE JUDGMERT to he filed with
the Court via CMFCE, which caused notice to be served on all counsel ol record via the Cowrd's
Natice of Electronic Filing INFF|, inchsding the Tollowing:

Michael David Maupin

Seott A Marguis

MARQUIS AURBACH COFTING
10001 Park Rumn Dinive

fas Vegas, NV 89145

FO2-38I-071]

Fax: 702-856-8972
Emailmroaupingemactiw com

Email smarquisi@mackow com
Attorneyy for Hebprid Internationad, LLC
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Eahibit 1 Declaration of Max Barber

xhibit 2 Bebhultz Bmand dated Aped 2, 2019 (discussing shipping gold from South
Adried)

Fxhibit 30 Wells Pargo Bank Statement showing June 13-14, 2009 wire trangfers
Exhibit 40 Ledger of Pavments between Scotia and Mvbrid/Schaliz entities

bxhibit 80 South Afnean High Court Case Namber 2022-002R04 confltoning Schudtz’s
critninal enforprise

Exhibit 6 Statement of Joremianh Spelman regarding gold purchases from Schalts
Exhibit 7: Hybrid Interravonal Invosees to Status Collection & Co. {August 19, 2019)
Exhibit 8 Bank Statement showing payment from Status Collection to Hybnid

Exhibit 9 South African Charging Documents

Exbibit 13 Sowh Adrican coust dossments regarding extradition proceeding

Fxhitbit [1: News Article article regarding Schdtz-related eriminal case and extradition
efforts

fixhibit 12 News24 Articles (257 Feb & 24 March) on continued extradition efforts,
Fxhubit 13 Johnughan Shultz's business registrations and corporate restrusturing,
seemingly designed o evade legal accountability. His attorney 1s noted as co-
direcior/olficer, raising questions about the sttorney-client relationship.

Exhibit 14 Evidence of Johnathan Schultz onginal entrance inte the Prectous Metals
Business 1a 2017 March 7ih contradicting his past Alfidavits

Exhibit 15 24th May 2022, Alidavit of Iohnathan R Schaolz

I
bro)
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Adsm I Ford (Fro Hac Free Pending)
Foriy d Crase FLILC

P30W, Commonwenlth Ave., Ste 204
Salt Vake Ciy, Utaly 841145

Teiephone: 2138154708

Fassimbiar 801 4071770

Ty PR SRR SR,
SRS ADTGERIOTOOTENS W, LN

Nevads Counsal:

Jeffrey Whhtehead (NV Bar #3183
WHITEHEAD & BURNETT

8950 *Hannon Drive

Las Vegas, NV LY

Telaphons: 702.267 6504

Fasshndie: MI2267 6282
Artowaeys for Mox and Burren Burber

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
o DISIRICT QX NEVADA

FYBRID INTUEENATIONAL, LLC, a Texas
Emited Hability company: FOHNATHAN ;
SCHULTY, anmdividoal, Case No, 2:19-OV-02077-JOMETY

Plaintfs, | REPLY MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT
: OF MOTION TO SET ASIDE
v, JUDGMENT (ECF 114)

RCOTIA INTERNATIONAL OF WEVADA,
INCL, a Ulah corporation, WARREN
BARBER, anmdvidaal, MAX BARBER, an
individuad; DOES FTHROUGH X and ROE
business sotitles [ throogh X inclusive,

Drefendants,

Drefendanis Warren Barber and Max Barber {collectively, the “Individoal Defendans™),

through counsel, respectfudly reply @1 support of thelr Kenewed Moetion to Bet Aside Judpment

1
£
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(the “Motion™, BECF 114) pursuant to Faderal Rule of (il Procedare 600548 and argue as
follows:

RESPONSE TO STATEMENT OF FACTS/PROCEDURAL HISTORY
INPEAINTIEVS QPPOSITION

The Oppostiton fled by Platnuffs Hybnd Interpational, L1.C and Jonathan Schuliz
largely evades the substantive argumests raised in the Moton, relving instead on procedural
sechnicalities, ad hominem atacks, and mischamcterizations of the evidence. The Cppositon
does nol refule the core alivgations of Mepslity wnderlyving the parties” business relationship, nor
does i contast the post-judgment discovery of esiticad evidence {hat renders the judgment
manifesty wjust. Plaiotitts fail to address how enforcement of the judgment farthers an illegal
scheme, harms wmocent third parties, and resuils inounjust errichment. As detailed below, these
omissions and deflections confirm the extraordinary circumsiances warranting relief under Rufe
HOMYE), w provision designed o accomplish justice where, as here, new cvidenoe reveals the
Judgment’s fundanental lnegquity.

ARGUMENT

i THE QPPOSITION FATLS TO REFUTE SCHULTZ'S INBICTMENT AND
ONGUING EXTRADITION EFFORTS IN SOUTH AFRICA

The Upposition does not deny that Jonathan Schultz has been indictad in South Afrca on
over 1,409 charges, Including frand, thefl, money laundering, and viclations of the Frecious
Metals Act and Prevention of Organized Came Ack, alongaide has campanies and business
associates such as Hybod Diamonds and Gold (P Lid and Grepgorie Fourie, Instead, Plaintiffy

afempt W minimize these facts by emphasizing procedural debays in the South Afdean coorts,
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without contesting the indictment’s existence or its direct tie to the “carbon fines” project at the
heart of this case.

Rimiiarly, the Oppesition does not deny that the goverrunent of South Africe continues to
seek Schultz’s extradition fo faee these crimanal chavges, which stem from the same illegal gold
smuggling and carbon fines export business ii%zsnafcs rned the basis of the parties” agreemend.

Plaintiffs acknowledge the exiradition proceedings bot dismiss them as stalled by technical
rulings, such as the Sapreme Court of Appeal’s decision on exiradition authority, without
expiaining why this does rot underscore the scheme™s HHlegality. These non~demtals concede the
validity of Defendants” evidenoe, inchuding South African court docwments and affidavits
{Motion Fxs. 5, 9-12), and fail to rebut how the judgment enforces obligations arising from an
idicted criminal erderprise,

Under Nigth Cirouit precedent, contracts facilltating flegal conduct are unenforceable as

a matter of public policy, and the Opposttion’s procedural detlections do not alter this reality.
See Bassidii v. Gee, 613 F.3d4 928, 83637 (9 iy, 2008},
if. THE OPPOSITION IGNORES EVIDENCE OF ILLEGAL GOLD
IMPORTATION AND THE CENTRAL ROLE OF CARBON FINES IN THE
SCHEME
The Oppasition does not deny that (e gold Schultz imported into the United Sates and
that the Rarbers assisted in selling o Jeremish Spelman was brought into the country iHegally,
formririe part of the same scheme for which Schuby was indicted in Sonth Africs. Plaintiffs offer
ne rebuttal to Spelman’s sworn staternent detailing Schudtz’s gse of “carbon {fines” labeling to

hee

expedite smuggling and his Tdbure o provide customs documentation (Motion Ex. 6, nor do

3
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they contest the hank vecords loking these wansactions w indicted South African entities
{(Motion Exs, 3-4)

Furthermore, the Cipposition does not dony that importing carbon fines 1ot the United
States was a key component of the business deal between Hybrid and the Barbers, as svidenced
by Schulte’s own emails explicidy discussing shipping materials from Sowth Africs as part of the
vertitre {Motion X, 2L

By failing to differentiate between this newly discovered evidence of the schemae’s
overarching iHegality and rouiine breach-of-contract detalls that might have surfaced in
diseovery, the Opposition conflates the 1ssues and avoids addressing haw the carbon fines facede
volds the entire agresment ab indtio. This evasion highhights the manifest injustice of uphalding &

R

iadgment that rewards such condact. purbicularly where the evidence of Hlegatily—bolstered by
the LLS, Department of Homeland Security’s 2024 investigation—-only cryvstallized past-
sudgment votion Max Decl, §200.

i,  THE OPPOSITION RELIES ON AD HOMINEM ATTACKS RATHER THAN
SUBSTANTIVE EVIDENCE

Although the Oppositing repeatadly Iabais the Barbers s “frandsters™, Plaintifts produoce
na evidence of uny wrongdeing by the Barbers beyond their and prior counsel’s fallure to meet
deadlines in the Bugaton, Such ad Aorusem attacks do not suffice to rebut the arguments 1 the
©Muotion, as they distract from e sncontroverted evidenee of Schulis’s scheme without
addressing i1 meris, The Opposdrion’s BExhebit affidavit alleging unsehatantiated and dmeui{:d
frowds keocks relovance (o the sHegality at Issoe here and serves only Lo mpogn charsoter sather
than refute faots. The Barbers have never been found to have committed fraud or thell or

4
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anyilung similar in any judicial proceeding. The Florida case is a civil case, and Mr. Barber
expects the case 1o be dismissed shortdy. Unlike Mr. Schultz, the Barbers have never been
eriminally charged related to any business activity.

Nith Cireatt authority confims that actical or negligent inaction slone does not
preciude Rule 60{bKO) relict where, as here, extraordinary circumstances reveal deeper injustive.
See Laaring v, Syringe Gen, Hosp, 279 F 34 750, 754 96 Cir. 20023

Defendunts respectiudly request that the Court disregard these inflammatory tactics and
focus on the subsiantive evidence, potentially imposing sanctions under Federal Rule of Civi]
Procedure 11 for baseless asserions that profong this tigation without advancing resolution.

iV. THE OPPOSITION DOES NOT CONTEST POST-JUDGMENT DISCOVERY
OF THE SCHEME'S ITLEEGALITY

The Cpposition does not deny thas Schultz’s eriming! indictment in South Africa and the
llegaiity of his rele in importing carbon fines into the United States only became known to the
Barbers aftor the judgment was ontered. Plaintiffs fail o explain how it would have been
veasonable for the Barbers to uncaver Schuliz’e foreign iHegal activities through standard
discovery in this breach-ofcontract soit, particularly given Dorothy Barber™s undiagnosed
dementia impairing fnancial oversight snid hee 2024 death (Motion Max Decl $49-13). By
disniissing this evidence as vot "newly discovered™ without engaging s thning or the Barbers’
inability to access it earlier, the Opposition ovarlooks Rule 60{(k¥6)'s allowance for relief based
on facts contral 1o the litigation that show the judgment to be manifestly unjust, even if prier
presentation was inexcusable. See People for the Fihifeal Treatment of Antmals v, US. Dep't of

Health & Human Serve,, 226 F. Supp. 3d 39, 47 (D.D.C 20170
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This post-indgment reveladon, inehuding the DHS s 2024 approach (Motion Max Decl.
20y, distinguishes the ilegality evidence from contract details and mandates vacatur 1o preven
judicial endorsement of criminality.

V. THE TIMELINE OF DISCOVERY CONFIRMS BEFENDANTS COULD NOT
HAVE KNOWN OF THE SCHEME’S ILLEGALITYY DURING THE
GRIGINAL LITIGATION

The Opposition fails 0 comest the timebine of Defendants” discovery of the key facty
underiving this Modon, which demonstrates that the tilegality of Schuliz’s scheme was

unknowable during the pre-judgment discovery phase when admissions were deemed admitted in
2021,

As detailed in Max Barber's Declaration and supporting exhubiis, the Barbers” awareness
of these facis arose entively after the Murch 26, 2023 judgment, rendering them “newly
discovered™ under Ruje 0B 6} and excusing any prior inaction. Plaintiffs do not explain how
routing discovery in & breach-of-contract dispute could have uncovered foreign indictments,
sxtradition proceedings, or 2 LLS. Bepariment of Hemeland Security investigation that had not

ot materialized,

The thmeline (s as follows: {1} In mid-2023, well after the judgment, the Barbers first
fearned of Dorothy Barber’s early-anset dementia diagnosis, with symptoms dating back 16 2618,
which explained her irapatred oversight of the 2019 finangiai transactions and why tneomplete
records wers not guestioned earlier (Motion Max Dol #88-10,16); (2) On January 15, 2024,
Uiewothy s death enabled accoss t her files, leading to the Maych 2024 discovery of

comprebensive baok records showing Scotia’s B556,000 repayments 1o Hybrid entiti
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excerding the $300.000 investment and contradicting the judgment™s na-repayinent finding
Moton pp. 12-34; Max Decl ®412-15; Ex 4% (3) In early 2024, the WIS approached the
Barbers for cooperation in its investigabon into Schulte’s smuggding, marking the first revelution
of the scheme’s eriminal depth and prompling review of Scuth African records (Moion p. 16;
M Decl §200 (47 By Jane 2024, media reports detalled Schalls's evasion and extradition
afforts tied 1o the carbon fines facade (Moton BEx. 11y and (3} Through 2024 and into 2023,
escalaling South African developments. including procedural rulings delayving but not halting
extradition, confirmed the indictment’s Hok to the parbes” deal (Motion Exs. 51012

This sequence establishes that the legality evidence—=Rebuliz’s 2021 ndictment on

emerged post-judgment, with critical LS. and South Advican confinmations in 20242025, The
Opposition does not refizte that these facts were inaccessible duning diseovery, nor does 1t
suggest how Defendants could reasonably nave anticipated or uncoverad g foveign cringnal
probe in g domesiie contract suit. By ignoring this timeline, Plainiiffs concede that the evidence
gqualifies as exiraondinary circumstances warranting relief] as it reveals the judgment’s role in
eriforeing an ilepal scheme unknosws at the tme of the deemed admissions. Sce People for the
Erhical Treatment of duimals v, US Dep 't of Health & Huwmwan Serve, 226 FL Supp. 3d 39, 47

(DDLC, 2017} (relief appropriate for post-judgment frots showing manifest injustics, even if

prioy Inactinn was inexcusable),

-3
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¥i.  THE OPPOSITION'S PIONEER FACTORS ANALYAIS MISAPPLIES THE
STANDARD AND WEIGHS IN FAVOR OF RELIEF

The Opposition's relimnes on the Ploneer factors analvsis overlooks 1 critical distinction
1z the application of Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 60(b), The Supreme Court's decision in
Poneer fvesiment Services Co v, Brunswick Assocvates Limited Partnership, 307 LLS. 380D
(1993}, primarily ntepeets the ferm “excusable negleet™ as used in Ruole 60(b} 1), providing s
framework for eviduating delays attriborable to inadvertence or mistake within that subsection's
are-year imitation period. B contrast, Rule 60(h)(0) serves as & broader, squiiabie caich-all
provision, authodzing rehiat for “any other reason that justifies relied™ in extraordinary

freumsiances, withow the rigid constraings of (b1

Wiile courts may drow guidance from Ploneer's factors-—such as prefudice, delay,
reason, and good fith-—io assess tineliness under (B)6), these {actors are not disposiiive oy
controliiog: nstend, the rude eropowers the court to vacate 8 jusdgoert whenover necessary (o
accomplish ustice, particularly where, as here, post-ludgment evidence reveals the original
Judgmoent to be manitestly uniust by endoreing obligations arising from an fllegal scheme. See
Henson v, Fidelity Navonal Financial, Ine. 943 F 3d 434, 443 ¢th i, 2019) {eraphasizing

Rude 6006} as o “grand reservoir of egottable power that allows cowrts to gram relief from a
final judgment Tor ‘any” peason that “justifies relicf™™)
Even under Promeer, however, the factors sepport granting relief] as the Opposition”s
aralbysis overlooks the post-jadgmoent natwe of the evidence and exaggerates prejudive while

downplaying Delendants” didigence in bght of newdy discoverad fhots.
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With respect 6 the danger of mrefudice 1o Hybrd, the Opposition emphasizes
domesticated judgments and collection efforts, including setaures of property and substardial
cosis incurred. Plaiatiffs do not refude, however, that vacatur woudd privearily wowind benefiis
derived from an illegal scherog, ot tmpese usdue hacdship, The seized assets, such as family
heirfoons and iwems belongiag o d entthird parties. can be restored withowt irreparalile harm
to Hybrid, particularly where the gvidence shows Hebnid regovered 1ts trvestment plus $356,000
pre-litigaticn throngh the 2019 repaymests. Any reiitigation burden @5 outweighed by the public
policy agamst enforcing judgments tied fo criminal enterprises. and Hybnd's engoing collection
from a potentially veidable judgment does not constitute cognizable prejudice under Rule
SOOHEY See Joff D v Kemprhorne, 365 V.34 844, 831-32 (9th Cir. 2004 {reliet varranted
where prospective application v Josawiable).

As o the lengih of delay, the Opposition cladms over two vears sinee the March 20, 202
Judgment readers the Moton antimely, Plaint iy fail to address, however, that the delay aligns
with the timeline of discovery: Darothy Barber's death i January 2024 enabled access ©
financial records in March 2074, and the DHS investigation and South Afvicas extradition
updates emerged i carly 2024 and continued into 2028, This Motion, filed June 27, 2023, falls
within @ reasonable time post-discovery, cspeelally under Rule 60(b36) s Qexible stundard for
“exiraordinary cirewmstances” cnavailabie earlier, The Opposition’s rigid two-vear focus ignoves
this context, and courts have granted relic! afier sinuilar or longer delays where evidence was
genainely now. See Martines v Shier, 33 F.ath 1254, 1262 (9th Cir. 2022) (delay excused by

compeliing post-iodgment yeasons;.

=
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On the reason for the delav, the l“)rpmn on asserts no compsiling reason was offered,
disrmssing Detendants’ explanations as LXL[;:-L‘\ previnusly rejentad. Plaintiffs do nol refuie,
however, the soontmverted evidence of Dorothy™s dementia impairing foancial oversight since

2018, diagmosed mid-2023, or the post-judgment revelations from the DHS and South African
procesdings, These facts were arkanowable dunng discovery, as forcign indictments and 118,
investigations had not fully materialized, and routine somtract Htigation would not uncover them
The deday siems divectly from this late discovery, pot neglect, providing a compelling equitable
basis for relief

Finaliy, as to good faith, the Gpposition alleges u pattern of bad-fatth conduct, citing
prioe fingaiton failores and unreated frand aceusations, Plaintiffs prodoce no evidence, however,
finking such conduct to the current Moton's merits, relving instead on ad fominem
characierizations without rebutting the illegality evidence. Defendants have acted in pood faith
by promptly fHling upon discovering the facis, withdrawing the prior motion when warranted,
and presenting worefuled documeniation. Any past procedural lapses do not negate the
extraordinary ciroumstances heve, where good faith s evidenced by the Motion™s focus on justics
oveT ovasion.

{n sum, the Ploneer factors, even if applicable, favor Defendants and underscore the nec
fior vaenhur {o preveot mapifest ifustice.

VIR  THE OPPOSITION'S PROCEDURAL ARGUMENTS MISCONSTRIE RULE
SIHDHOY AND OVERLOOR THE MOTION'S NOVEL BASIS
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By the Opposttion’s logic, any judgment, no matter how ¢learly in firtherance of a later-
discovered ilegal seheme, could not be overtwrned based on new evidence, a position that
comtravenss Rale O(BYEY s equitable purpose 1o preserve Justive aver ngud finality, See Good
Luck Nursing Foms, Ine. v, Horris, 636 F.24 572, 577 (D.C Cir, 1980). The Oppositdon's
ywocedural argurpents, neluding urdimeliness aod ros jodicaty, Tl 1o recopndee that the Repewed
Motion is niol based on the same facts as the revicus moton, which centered en the Barbery’
xnowiedge of payvments from Hybrid to Scotia and was withdrawn wpon realizing their inclusion
{although not their fuli comprehension) in related commuanications, While the fact of Scotia’s
repayments excesding S300. 000 remuins refevant as 2 secondarny point Hiustrating enjust
errichient, the Kenewed Motion’s prunary basis is the entive scheme™s Glegality from
inception-—a novel, post-judgment rovelation that reframes the prior facts and demands relief

Plainnf¥s” conflativn of these issues underscores their avoidance of the mierits, warranting
derdal of their procedural defenses.

CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, Defondants respectfully request that the Cowt grant the
Renewed Motion to Vacate or Set Aside Jadgment, deny the Opposition in its entirety, and
awvarid such furdher relet as 1t deoms just and proper, including an evidentary heanng i

necessary 1o resolve any disputed facts.

DIATED this 28 day of Jaly, 2025

fs/ Jeffrey Whi

Jeffrey Whitchead (NV Bar 83183

[
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WITEHEAD & BURNETT
6980 O Bammon Drive

Las Vegas, NV 89117
Telephone: 702.267.6500
ieflimwhiteheadbumett.com

Adam Tk Ford (Pro Hae Vice Pending)

FORD & CRANE PLLO

130 W. Commuonwealth Ave., Ste 204

Salt Lake City, Utah 84115

Telephone: 213.913.4291

adam, fordigforderanelaw. com

Attorneys for Defendants Max and Warren Bavber

i2
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

1, the undersigned, certify that on the 29% day of July, 2023, T caused a true and correct
copy of the foregoing REPLY MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF MOTION TO SET ASIDE
JUTYGMENT to be filed with the Court via CM/TCT, which caused notice to be served on all
counse! of record via the Court’s Notice of Eleetronic Filing [NEF], including the falfowing:

Michael David Maupin

Scott A Marguis

MARQUIS AURBACH COFFING
16041 Pack Run Drive

Las Vegas, NV 89743

TG2-382-07 1)

Faxo 702-836-8977

Bmail: mwpsumpi@maniaw. g
Email: smoarqu

i3
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21 DEBRA A VALENTINE STy
Genearal Counsel s gt g
GEQRGE §. ZWEIBEL 5
41 KATHRYN C. DECKER Ll e
NADINE 5, SAMTER JUL 28 1998 booe o
51 VFederal Trade Commission i
G515 Second Avenue, Suite 7856 .
6} Seattle, WA 98174 U-S. DISTRICT COURT
{206) 220-6350
7
Attorneys for Plantiff
S
| UNITED STATES DISTRIUT COURT
g DISTRICT OF UTAE, CENTRAL DIVISION
ig
Aoy
H1 FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION, 4 99CV 5% G G
- -
12 {ase No.
STIPULATED FINAL
14 V. JUDGMENT AND ORDER

15 WASATCH CREDIT CORP., a Uah

. Corporation, WASATCH EQUITIES CORP. 3
16 Utah Comoration, WASATCH LOANS, INC., a
‘ Utak Corporation, WASATCH RECOVERY

171 CORP., a Utah Corporatiocn, RHK FAMILY
TRUST, a Trust, and DAVID KNUDSON and
(g HOLLY KNUDSON, as Individuals and as

‘ Trustees of the RHE FAMILY TRUST,

G Defendants.

Plaintiff. Federal Trade Commission {("Commission™), has filed a Complaiat for a

23 permanent injunction and other equitable relief pursuant to Sections 5{a} and 13{b} of the Federal
241 Trade Commission Act CFTC Act™, 15 1L8.C. §§ 45(a) and 53(b), and Section 108(c) of the
Truth in Lending Act (°TILA™Y, 153 U.S.C. § 1607(c), alleging that defendants have viclated
TILA, 15 11.5.C. §% 1601-1666], as amended, mciuding but not limnited to the Home Owoership
and Eguity Protection Act of 1994 ("HOEPA™"), as amended, TILA's implementing Regulation £,

28} 12 C.FR. 226, as amended, and Scction 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a), as amended. #*

JTUDGMENT AND ORDER -

14419279 B: 11591 P: 2973  Page 45 of 98



[

- I R Y A

Cage 29%0uw-0007807G Documend 3 Ried Q8200 Pageild ? Page & ot 27

Plaintff and defendants, by and through their respective counsel, have agreed to entry of
this Stipulated Final Judgment and Order (“Qrder”) by this Court, without trial or adjudication of
any issue of fact or law, The said parties having requested the Court to enter this Order, it is

therefore ORDERED, ADIUDGED, AND DECREED as follows:

FINDINGS
i This Court has jurisdiction over defeadants and the subject matier of this action.
Venue in the District of Utah is proper.
2. The Complaint states a claim upon which relief may be granted under Sections

101 to 171 of TILA, 15 U.S.C. §§ 1601-1666), and Sections 5(a) and 13(k) of the FTT Act, 15
U.S.C. §8 45(a) and 33(b).

3 The Comunission has the authority under Sections 3{a) and 13(b) of the FTC Act,
13 U.8.C. 8§ 45¢a) and 53(b). and Section 108(c) of TILA, 13 U.S.C. § 1607(c), to seek the relief
it has reguesied.

4. The activities of defendants are in or affecting commerce, as "commerce” s
defined i Seciion 4 of the FTC Act, 15 US.C § 44

5. Defendants, while neither admitting nor denying any of the allegations of
wiongdoing set forth in the Complaint, stipulate and agree to entry of this Order.

& Plaintiff and defendants waive all rights to seek judicial review or otherwise
challenge or contest the validity of this Order, and defendants waive any right that may anse
under the Bqual Access to Justice Act, 28 US.C. § 2412, "

7. Entry of this Order is in the public interest.

DEFINITIONS

As used in this Order

Al The terms "amount financed,” "annual percentage rate,” “closed-end credit,”
“consumer,” “"consumer credit,” "consummation,” "credit," "creditor,” "dwelling," "finance

o

charge.” "morigage," “open-end credit,” “payment schedule.” "person,” "points and fees,”
“residential mortgage transaction,” "reverse morigage transaction,” "security interest,” and "total

of payments” are defined as set forth in Sections 103 and 128 of TILA, 15 UL5.C. §3 1602 and

JUDGMENT AND ORDER - 2

14419279 B: 11591 P: 2974  Page 46 of 98




Case 292-0¢-00579-0T0 Document 3 Fiad 08/22/99 PagelD 3 Page 30027
1638, and Sections 226.2, 226.4, 226.18, 226.22, 22632, and 226.33 of Regulation Z, 12 CF.R.
§8 226.2, 2264, 225,18, 226.22, 226.32, and 22633

B. The term "HOEPA” means the Home Ownership and Equity Protection Act of
1994 which, inter alia, amended TILA by adding Section 129 of TILA, 13 US.C. § 1839, and is
implemented by, lnter alia, Sections 226.31 and 226.32 of Regulation Z, 12 C.RR. §§ 226.31 and
22632

. The term "HOEPA mortgage loan” means a consiter credit transaction
consummated on or after Ocrober 1, 1995, that is secured by the consumer’s principal dwelling,
other thar a residential mortgage transaction, & reverse MoNgage ransaction or an open-end
credit plan, in which: {1} the annual percentage rate at consumimation of the wansaction will
exceed by more than 10 percentage points the vield on Treasury securities having comparable
pericds of maturity to the loan maturity as of the 15th day of the month immediately preceding
the month in which the apphication for the extension of credit is received by the creditor; or (2}
the total points and fees pavable by the consumer at or before loan closing will exceed the greater
of 8% of the total loan amount or $400 (adjusted annnally by the Board of Governors of the
Federal Reserve System (“FRB™) on January | by the annual perventage change in the Consumer
Frice Tndex that was reported on June 1 of the preceding year), which is covered by HOEPA,
pursuant 1o Section 129 of TILA, 1§ US.C. § 1639, and Section 224.32 of Regulabion 2, 12
CFR.§ 226,32, As used berein, the "total loan amount” is caleulated as described in Section
226 32aX EXii-1 of the FRE Official Staff Commentary on Regulation Z, 12 CFR.
§ 226.320s¥ D1, Supp. L

0. The term “open HOEPA mortgage loan” means a HOEPA mortgage loan that, on
the date of entry of this Grder, has not been paid off in full or foreclosed upon,

E. The term "Regulation Z° means the regulation the FRB promulgated to implement
TILA and HOEPA, 12 C.F.R. 226, as amended. The term also includes the FRB Official Staff
Commentary on Regulation Z, 12 CF.R. 226, Supp. 1, as amended.

F. The term “TILA" means the Truth in Lending Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 1601-1665), as

amended,

HWDGHENRT AND ORDER - 5

14419279 B: 11591 P: 2975 Page 47 of 98




T I T A F e TP W e T el ke adtadl R i P denesd P S i PR R "y
Cane 2898w Q0E7E-ITG Dooumant 3 Hled OB/23/BE Papgeili 4 Page 4 of 27

i RDER
2 I
3 Injunciion Against HOEPA and Related FTC Act Violations
4 IT IS THEREFGORE ORDERED that defendants, and vach of them, their successors,
5k assigns, officers, agents, servants, employees, and all other persons or entities in active concert of
6§ participation with them who receive actual notice of this Order by petsonal service or otherwise,
71 whether acting directly or through any business, eatity, corporation, subsidiary, division or other
81 device, in connection with offering or making any HOEPA morigage loan, are permanentdy
9} restrained and enjoined from:
O A, Failing to provide the notice required by Section 129} 1) of TILA, 153 U5.C
Pi § 18390}, and Section 226.32(¢) 1) of Regulation Z, 12 CF.R. § 226.3%c)(1), and Section 5
121 ofthe FI'C Act, 15 US.C. § 45(a);
i3 B. Failing to disclose, or accurately disclose, the annual percentage rate, as required
14§ by Section 129(a)2) of TILA, 15 U.8.C. § 163%9(a}2), and Section 226.32(c){2) of Regulation 7,
134 12 CFR. §22632(c)2), and Section 3a) of the FIC Act, 153 USC. §45@a)
i6 . Failing to disclose, or accurately disclose, the regular payment amount, as
17§ required by Section 12%a)}2) of TILA, 15 US.C, § 1639a)(2), and Section 226.32{0)(3} of
i8] Regulation Z, 12 CFR. § 226.32{c)3)}, and Section 3{a) of the FTC Act, 13 US.C. § 45(a);
19 D Failing to make any disclosure described in Section LA through 1O of this Order
20 clearly and conspicucusly in writing at least three days prior to consummation of a HOEFA
211 mortgage loan transaction, as required by Ssction 129(b)(1) of TILA, 15 US.C. § 1639(b) 1},
22| and Section 226.31(h) and (¢} 1} of Regulation Z, 12 CF.R. § 226.31(b) and {c)1}, and Ssction
231 5a)of the FIC Act, IS5 US.CL§ 45(a)
24 E. Muodifying or waiving the thres-day waiting period between delivery of
251 disclosures required by HOEPA and consummation of a HOEPA morigage loan transsction
261 without receiving a dated written staternent that describes a bona fide personal financial
27§ emergency, specifically modifies or waives the waiting period, and bears the signatures of all of
281 the consumers entitled to the waiting perlod, fn violation of Section 12900 3) of TILA, 15
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LLE.C. § 163%(b)(3), and Section 226.31{c)1 Kiii} of Regulation Z, 12 CFR. § 226.31{c) 1)),
and Section 5{a} of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45{a);

F including a prohibited "balloon payment” provision, in violation of Section 12%e)
of TILA, 15 U.S.C. § 1639(e), and Section 226.32{d)1) of Reguiation Z, 12 CFR.
§ 226.32(d){ 1}, and Section S{a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a),

G. Incioding a prohibited “increased interest rae” provision, 1n vitlation of Section
139y of TILA, 15 U.S.C. § 1639(d), and Section 226.32(d)4) of Regulation , 12 CER.
§ 226.32(d}4), and Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 US.C. § 4%a);

H. Engaging in a patterp or practice of extending credit to a consumer based on the
consuimer' s collateral if, considering the consumer’s current and expected income, current
obligations, and employment siatus, the consumer will be unabie (o make the scheduled
payments to repay the obligation, in violation of Section 129(h) of TILA, 15 1.8.C. § 1638(h),
and Section 236.32(e)(1) of Regulation Z, 12 C.F.R. § 226.32(e){1}, and Section $(a) of the FT'C
Act, 15 U.5.C. § 45(a); and

f. Failing to comply with any other provision of HOEPA.

1.
Injunction Against TILA and Belated FTC Act Violations

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that defendants, and each of them, their suceessors, assigns,
officers, ageats, servants, employees, and al] other persons or entities in active concert or
participation with them who receive actual notice of this Order by personal service or otherwise,
whether acting directly or through any basiness, entity, corporation, subsidiary, division or other
device, in connection with offering or extending consumer credit, are permanently restrained and
enioined from:

Al Failing to make TILA disclosures in writing before consemmation of a consamer
credit trangaction, as required by Sections 121(a) and 128(0)(1)y of TILA, 15 U.8.C. 8§ 163 1(a)
amed 1638(h)( 1), and Sections 226.17(a} and (b) and 226.18 of Regulation 7, 12 CER.

§8 226.17(a) and () and 226,18, and Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 US.C. § 45y,

JUDGMENT ANDORDER - 5
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8. Failing 1o disclose, or accurately disclose, the identity of the creditor making the
disclosures, as required by Section 128{a)(1) of TILA, 13 1L.S.C. § 1638(a)1), and Section
226.18(a) of Regulation Z, 12 CF.R. § 226.18(a), and Section 3(a) of the FTC Act, ISUSC
§ 45(a):

C. Failing to disclose, or accuraiely disclose, the amount financed, as required by
Section 128(a}2) of TILA, 15 US.C. § 1638a)2), and Section 226.18(h) of Regulation Z, {2
C.FR. § 226.18(b), and Section 3(a} of the FTC Act, 15 US.C. § 45(a);

D. Failing to disclose, or accurately disclose, the finance charge, as required by
Sections 106 and 128(a)(3) of TILA, 15 U.S.C. §8 16035 and 1638a)(3), and Sections 226 .4 and
226.18(d) of Regulation Z, 12 C.FR. §§ 226.4 and 226.18(d), and Section $(s) of the FTC Act,
15US.C § 45(ay

E. Failing to disclose, or accurately disclose, the annuval percentage rate. as required
by Sections 107 and 128{a)(4) of TILA, 15 US.C. §§ 1606 and 1638(a¥4), and Sections
126.18{e) and 226.22 of Regulation Z, 12 C.FR. §§ 226.18(¢) and 226 22, and Section 5(a) of
the FTC Act, 1S US.C. § 45(a);

F. Fuibing to disclose, or socurately disclose, the payment schedule, as required by
Section 128(a)6) of TILA, 15 U.S.C. § 1638(a)6), and Section 226.18(g) of Regulation 7,

12 CER. § 226.18(g}, and Section 5{a) of the FTC Act, 15 US.C. § 45y

G. Failing to disclose, or acourately disclose, the total of payments, as required by
Section 128{aX 5} of TILA, 1S U.5.C. § 18638(a)5), and Section 226 13(h) of Regulation Z,
1IZ2CEFR, § 226.18(h), and Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 US.C. § 45(a);

H. Failing to disclose, or accurately disclose, whether or not a penalty may be
imnposed if the obligation is prepaid in full, as reguired by Section 128(a¥ 1 of TH.A, 1S USC
§ 1638(aj{11), and Section 226.18{(k)(1) of Regolation Z, 12 C.F.R. § 226.18(k)(1), and Section
5(2) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45y

1 Failing to disclose, or aceurately disclose, any dollar or percentage charge that

may be imposed before maturity due (o a late payment, other than a deferral or extension charge,

JUDGMENT AND ORDER - &
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as required by Section [28{(a¥10) of TILA, 15 U.S.C. § 1838{a)}(10), and Section 226.18(1) of
Regulation Z, 12 C.F.R. § 226.18(1), and Sectian 5{(a) of the FTC Act, 1S US.C. & 45(a);

I Failing to disclose, or accorately disclose, the fact that the creditor has or will
acquire a security interest in the consumer’s principal dwelling, as required by Section 128(2)(9)
of TILA, 15 U.S.C. § 1638(aK?9), and Section 226.18{m) of Regulation Z, 12 CFR.

§ 226.18(m}, and Section 5{a) of the FTC Act, 153 US.C. 8 45(a};

K. Making any consumer credit disclosare that does not reflect the terms of the Jegal
obligation between the parties, in violation of Section 226.{7(¢)(1) of Regulation 7, 12 CFR.
§ 226.17(c){ 1), and Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 US.C. § 45a)

L. Failing to deliver the reguired notice of the right to rescind a consumer eredit
transaction in which a security interest is or will be retained or acquired in the consumer’s
principal dwelling, as required by Section 125{a) of TILA, 15 US.C. § 1635(a), and Section
226.23(b} of Regulation Z, 12 CF.R. § 226.23(b), and Section 5{a) of the FTC Act, 1ISUS.C. §
45¢a);

1% 8 Failing 1o deliver two copies of the required notice of the right to rescind to each
consumer entitled 1o rescind, as required by Section 125(a) of TH.A, 15 U.S.C. § 1635¢a), and
Sections 226.17(d) and 226.23(b) of Regulation Z, 12 C.F.R. §§ 226.17{d) and 226.23(b), and
Section 5{a} of the FTC Act, 15 US.C. § 45{(a);

N Disbursing money before the TILA rescission period has expired, in violation of
Section 125 of TILA, 15 US.C. § 1635, and Section 226.23(c) of Regulation Z, 12 C.F.R.

§ 226.23(c), and Section 3{a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a);

0. Modifying or waiving a consumer’s right to rescind without receiving a dated
written statement that describes a bona fide personal financial emergency, specifically modifies
or walves the right 1o rescind, and bears the signatures of all of the consumers entitled to rescind,
in violation of Section 125{d) of TILA, 15 U.B.C. § 1635(d), and Section 226.23(e) of Regulation
Z, 1I2CFR. §226.23(e), and Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 US.C. § 45{a)

JUDRGMENT AND ORDER - 7
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P. Engaging in any practice that deprives a consumer of the right to rescind, in

violation of Section 125{a) of TILA, 15 US.C. § 1635(x}, and Section 226.23(a) of Regulanon 7,
12CEFR. § 226.23(a), and Section 5a) of the FIC Act, 15 USB.C § 450y

Q. Retaning, collecting, or threatening o retain or cojlect any amount in connection
with a consumer credit iransaction rescinded by a consumer pursaant to TILA, in violation of
Section 125(b) of TTLA, 15 U1.8.C § 1635(D), and Section 226.23(d) 1) of Regulation &, 12
CFR. § 226.23(d)(1), and Section 3ay of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(ay

R Failing to retain evidence of compliance with Reguiation Z, as required by Section
226.25(a) of Regulation Z, 12 CFR. § 326.25(a); and

5. Failing to comply with any other provision of TILA or Regulation Z.

111,
Injunction Against FTC Aet Violations

[T IS FURTHER ORDERED that defendants, and each of them, their successors, assigns,
officers, agents, servanis, emplovees, and all other persons or entities in active concert or
participation with them who receive aciial notice of this Order by personal service or otherwise,
whether acting directly or through any business, entity, corporation, subsidiary, division or other
device, in connection with advertising, offering, brokering or extending credit, in or affecting
commerce, as “commerce” 18 defined in Section 4 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. §44, are
permanently restrained and eujoined from:

A Misrepresenting in any manner, directly or by imiplication, any material fact,
including bot ot limited 1o

I Any eredit cost or term, including bat not limited to the annual

percentage rate or finance charges;

2. The effects of entering into 3 business or commercial credit ransaction;
3. The effects of entering into a consumer credit transaction,
4, Any aspect of the TILA right to rescind, inclading hat not limited

i the requirernent that the creditor return to the consurmner all

JUDGHENT AN ORDER - 8
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maories and property paid in conpection with the transaction in the
event of rescission; and
5. Whether the credit offered or extended is open-end credit;

B, Engaging in any act or practice that deprives 4 consumer of the HOEPA waiting
period (15 UL.S.C. § 1639(b)( 1} and 12 CFR. § 226 31{c) 1)} or the TILA right to rescind (15
ULS.Co§ 1635 and 12 CFR, § 22623,

C. Directing a consumer to falsely state the purpose of an extession of credit,
includiag but not limited 1o stating that the extension of credit is primarily for & business or
commercial purpose when, in fact, it is primarily for a personal, family or household purpose:
and

D Falsifying or altering material information in aay document relating to a credit
transaction, including but not limited to information conceming the purpose of the exiension of
credit.

kY.
Performance Bond Reguirement

T IS FURTHER ORDERED that defendants, whether directly or indirectly, in concert
with others, or through any intermediary, business entity or devics, are permanently restrained

and enjoined from offering or extending any consumer credit, uniess they first obtain a

A Each bond shall be conditioned upon defendants’ compliance with TILA,
HOBEPA, Regulation Z, Section 3(a} of the FTC Act, 15 US.C. § 45(a), and the provisions of thig
Order. Fach bond shall be deemed continuous and remaln in Al force and effect for s Gve (%)
year period from the date a defendant first offers or extends consumer credit, after which thia
bonding requirement will terminate as to new loans, but shall remain in full force and effect for
an additional three (3} years as (o loans written within the five-vear period. Each bond shall cite
this Order as the subject matter of the bond, and shall provide surety thercunder against financial

ioss due, in whole or in part, to any material violation of THLA, HOEPA, Regulation £, Section

Ma) of the FTC Act, or any provision of this Order;

JUBGMENT AND QRDER - @

14419279 B: 11591 P: 2981 Page 53 of 98




(Y- - S B > R T T T R OV S

- FNY [ ot sy ks oy s ok . == et ot

Cass 28980 G08780TG Gocument 3 Filed 08/23/08 PageilD 10 Page 10 0f 27

B. Fach bond shall be an insurance agresment providing sursty for financial loss
issued by a surety company that is admitied to conduct surety business in each of the states in
which any defendant does business and that holds a2 Federal Certibicate of Aunthority As
Accepiable Surety Un Federal Bond and Reinsuring. Defendants shall be desned to be doing
business in each state in which any defendant, or any entity through which a defendant is offering
or extending consurner credis, maintains an office or contacts any consumer. Such bond shall be
in favor of both (1} the Commission for the benefit of consumers injured due, in whole or in part,
to any material violation of TILA, HOEPA, Regulation Z, Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, or any
provision of this Order, and {2) any consumer so injured. Each bond shall be executed in favor of
the Comunission or in favor of any injured consumer if the Commission or the consumer
demonstrates to this Court, or a Magistrate thereof, by a preponderance of the evidence, that a
defendant has violated any condition of the bond;

C. Defendants shall not disclose the existence of any performance bond required by
Section TV of this Order to any consamer to whom consumer credit is offered or extended
without also disclosing clearly and prominently, at the same time, in writing:

AS REQUIRED BY ORDER OF THE U8, DISTRICT COURT IN
SETTLEMENT OF CHARGES OF FALSE AND MISLEADING
REPRESENTATIONS AND FAILURE TO IMSCLOSE
MATERIAL INFORMATION IN THE OFFERING AND
EXTENDING OF CONSUMER CREDIT,

D Defendants shall provide a copy of each bond required by Section IV of this Order
to Regional Director, Federal Trade Comumnission, 915 Second Avenue, Suite 2896, Seattle, WA
9B174, ut least tent (14 days prior to the comumencement of any activily or business for which the
bond is required; and

E. The bond required by Section IV of this Order shall be in addition to, and aot in
licu of, any other bond required by law.

JUDGMENT AND ORDER - 10
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Y.
Payment of Consumer Redress

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that defendants, their successors and assigns, jointly and
severally, shall pay redress to consumers in the amount of $55,000. Defendants shall transfer the
sum of $53,000 into an escrow account designated by plaintiff, on or before five (5) days after
the date of entry of this Order. This sum shall be used to provide redress to consumers who
obtained HOEPA mongage {oans between October 1, 1995, and the date of entry of this Order,
and to pay any attendant expenses of administration. The FTC shall determine, in its sole
discretion, which consumers ave eligible for redress as well as the amounts to be paid.

A If the Comimission determines, in its sole discretion, that redress (0 consumers is
wholly or partially impracticable, any funds not so used shall be deposited into the United States
Tressury. Defendants shall be notified as to how funds are disbursed, but shall have no right to
contest the manner of distribution chosen by the Commission.

B. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Order, defendants agree that if they
fail 10 meeet the payment obligations set forth in Section V of this Order, defendants shall pay the
costs and anorneys fees incurred by the Comunission and {1s agents in any attempts o collect
amounis due pursuant to thas Order. The facts as alleged in the Complaint filed in this action
shall be 1aken as true in any subsequent Litigation filed by the Commission 1o enforce its rights
pursuant to Section V of this Order, including but not limited to a nondischargeability complaint
in any subsequent bankruptcy proceading.

Vi,
Reformation of Contracts

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, on or before fourteen (14) days after the date of entry
of this Order, for each open HOEPA mornguge loan that is wholly or partially owned by any
defendant on the date of entry of this Order, defendants, their successors and assigns, shall:

A, if the note ur contract contains a "balloon payment” provision in violation of
Section 129(e) of TILA, 13 L1L8.C. § 163%(e), and Section 226.32{d)(1) of Regulation Z, 12

C.FR.§ 226.32(d) 1), reform the note or contract by nullifying that provision and, without
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1] altering any other provision, extending the terms of the loan such that the ouistanding principa

2§ balance will be due not sooner than five years afier the date of the note or contract,

3 B If the note or coniract provides for an increase in the interest rate in the event of

4% default in violation of Section 129(d) of TILA, 13 U.5.C. § 1639(d), and Section 226.3Xd¥4) of
53 Regulation Z, 12 CRR. § 226 33(d)(4), reform the note or contract by nullifving that PIGVISION;
6F and

7 . Mail or deliver to each consumer obligated in a note or contract reformed pursuant
81 to Section V1of this Order # ciear and conspicunus written notice describing each change made

91 inthe note or contract and stating that exch nulfified provision will not be enforced by any party,

10§ and that does not contain any other information.

i1 YIii.
iz Truthfuiness of Financial Statements
i3 IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, within three (3) business days after the date of entry of

14§ this Order. defendants David Knudson and Holly Knudson shall each submit to the Commuission
15§ asworn statement, in the forra shown in Atiachments A and B to this Ouder, that shall reaffirm
16 and attest tu the truthfulness, accuracy, and completeness of the Financial Statements that they

; 3 -
E@ executed qn.7 «L_,/""'“ i@ fﬁ_g%g, and the related docoments previously submitted to the

18§ Commission (together designated the “Financial Staternent") on behalf of defendants Wasatch

19§ Credit Corp., Wasatch Equities Corp., Wasaich Loans, Tnc., Wasatch Recovery Corp., and RHK
20§ Family Trust. The Commission’s agreement to this Order is expressly premised upon the

21§ truthfulness, accuracy, and compileteness of defendants' financial condition as represented in the
22§ Financial Statements referenced above, which contain material infosmation upon which the

23§ Commission relied in negotiating and agreeing to the terms of this Order, including the amount
24} of monetary redress and the terms of the consumer redress payments stated in this Order.

25 Al If, upon motion by the Commission, this Court finds that any defendant failed to
6§ file the sworn statement required by Section VH this Order, filed & Financial Statement that failed

27§ to disclose any material asset or materially misrepresented the vaiue of any ssset, or made any

281 other material misrepresentation in or omission froms the Financial Statement, the judgment

JUDGMENT AND ORUER - 12
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herein shall be reopened for the purpose of determining an appropriate additional amount for
defendants to pay as redress to consumers in accordance with Section 'V of this Order.
B. For purposes of determining the amount of redress: (1) if the Financial Statement
failed to disclose a material asset or matedially misrepresented the value of an asset, forfeiture of
the asset, or the fair market value {or differsnce in fair market value) thereof, calculated as of the
date of entry of this Order, shall constitute an appropriate amount of redress; and (2) if the
Financial Statement failed to report the transfer of any asset to another person, the fair market
value of the asser shall constitute an appropriate amount of redress. i defendants cannot pay the
fair market value of the asset, and such transfer was not o a bona fide purchaser for value, this
Court shall impose a constructive trust for the benefit of injured consumers over the asset, and
the asset shall be conveyed by the transferee to the Commission; provided, however, that in all
other respects, this Order shali remain in full force and effect unless otherwise ordered by this
Court.
VI

Commission’s Authority to Monitor Compliance

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Conunission is amthorized 1o monitor defendanis’
compliance with this Order by all lawful mieans, including but not limited to the fallowing
NSRS

A, The Cornmdssion is authorized, without further leave of court, to obtain
discovery from any persen in the manner provided by Chapter V of the Federal Rules of Civil
Procedure, Fed. R, Civ, P. 26 - 37, including the use of compulsory process pursuant to Fed. R,
Civ, P. 45, for the puspose of monitoring and investigating defendants” compliance with any
provision of this Order;

B The Comumission is authorized to use representatives posing as consumers and
suppliers to any defendant, defendants’ employees, or any other endity maraged or controlied in
whole or in part by any defendant, without the necessity of identification or prior notice; and
C. Nothing in this Order shall limit the Commisston's lawful use of compulsory

process, pursuant to Sections 9 and 20 of the FTC Act, 15 US.C. §§ 49 and 37b-1, (o investigate

JUDOMENT AKND ORDER - 13
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whether any defendant has violated any provision of this Order or Section 3 of the FTC Act, 15
USC. §45
iX.
Record Keeping Reguirements
IT IS FURTHER ORIIERED that, for a periad of five {5) years from the date of entry of
this Order, defendants, their successors and assigns, in connection with any busingss where:
{1} any individual defendant is the majority owner of the business or
directly or indirectly manages or controls the business, and where
{2} the business is engaged in offering or extending consumer credit
are hereby permanently restrained and enjoined from failing to retain for @ period of five {§)
years following the date of their creation, unless otherwise specified:

A, Each disclosure statement, notice or other docurnent provided by or on behalf of a
defendant to any consumer pursuant to any provision of TILA, HOEPA or Regulation Z,
including but not limited to Sections 226.18, 226.23, and 226.32 of Regulation Z, 12 CFR.

§§ 226,18, 226.23, and 228,32, each walver received pursuant to Sections 226 23(e) or
226.31cH 1)) of Regulation Z, {2 C.FR. §§ 226.23(e) or 2263 1{c){ 1 ¥iii); each worksheet or
other calculation ool psed to produce THLA or HOEPA disclosures, incinding but not limited to
camputer programs and software; and all other records necessary to demonsirate defendants’
compliance with TH.A, HOEPA, and Regulation Z; provided, however, that nothing in Section
IX A of this Order shall be construed to supersede or mit defendants’ ongoing obligation io
retain evidence of compliance with Regolation Z pursuant to Section 226,25(a) of Regulation Z,
12 CFR. §226.25(a), and Section HLR of this Order;

B. Each disclosure statement, notice or other document provided by or on behalf of a
defendant to any person pursuant to any provision of the Real Estate Settiement Procedures Act,
12U.8.C §§ 2601-2617, as amended, or its implementing Reguiation X, 24 C.FR. 3500, as
amended, inchading but not limited to all good faith estimates and settlement statements,

regardiess of whether they are the final versions thersof;

JUDSGMENT AN ORDER - 14
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C. Each credit application, report {rom s consumer reporting agency, property
appraisal, and other document obtained conceming any applicant or application,

0, Hach note, contract, security agreement, mortgage, deed of trust, other document
signed by the borrower or prepared in connection with the transaction {whether signed or not},
and ather document relating to the servicing of an account, the collection of a delinguent or slow
account or foreclosure, as well as each rider, smendment or other document that modifies any of
the foregoiag,

E. Each loan register, ledger oy other docoment that lists (chronologically,
aiphabetically or otherwise} loans made by any defendant, including such information as
bhorrowers” names, loan nembers, loan types, dates of consummation, andfor loan smouns:

F. Each writien statement concerning a defendant’s policies, procedures or practices
in connection with extending credit, including but sot hinited to compliance with TILA, HOEPA
or Regulation &

G, Each printed advertisement and promotional Hem relating to credit, including but
not limited to newspaper and magazine advertisements, pamphlets, brochures, fivers, mailers,
and signs;

H. Each andio and video tape used to advertise or promote credit, and a printed
transcript for each such sudio and video tape;

i T printed form, each advertisement and promotional item relating to credit posied
in any Internet news group, on the World Wide Web, on any electronic bulletin board system, in
any online interactive conversational space or chat room, in the classified advertising section of
airy online service, of in any other location accessible by modem communications, including an
indication of the online location where the material was posted;

L Each coraplaint or refund request received in connection with an extension of
credit and the response thereto; and

k. Each signed statement secured by any defendant pursuant 1o Section X of this

Order.
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1 X.
2 Bristribution of Order
3 IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, for a peried of five (3) years from the date of entry of
4.1 this Order, defendants, their successors and assigns, shall:
5 A Provide a copy of this Order to, and obtain 3 signed and dated acknowledgment of
6§ receipt of same from, each officer or director, gach individual serving in & management capacity,
7§ all personnel involved in responding 1o consumer complaints or ingquinies, all sales personnel,
81 whether designated as emnployees, consultants, independent contraciors or otherwise,
2F immedigtely upon employing or retaining any such persons, for any business where:

10 {4 any individual defendant is the majonity owner of the business or

i1 directly or indirectly manages or contrals the business, and where

12 {2 the business is engaged in offering or extending consumer credit; and

13 B. Mainiain for a period of tive (3) vears after creation, and upon reasonable notice,

141 make available to representatives of the Commission, the original signed and dated

15} acknowledgments of the receipt of copies of this Order, as required 1 Section XA of this Order.

H XL
17 Compliance Reporting by Defendants
i3 IT IS FURTHER ORDEREI that, to assist the Commission i monitoning defendants’

198 compliance with this Order, defendants, their successors and assigns:
20 A For a perind of five (§) vears from the date of entry of this Order, shall notify the

2} § Commission of the following:

22 i. Any changes in defendant’s residence, mailing addresses,
23 or elephons numbers, within ten {10) days of the date of
24 such change:

25 2. Any changes in defendant’s emplovment status (including
26 self-employment) within ten (10} days of the date of such
27 change. Such notice shall include the name and address of
28 each business that defendant is affiliated with or eraployed

FJUDGMENT AND ORDER - 15
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One huadred eighty (180) days after the date of entry of this Order, shall provide a

by, a statement of the nature of the business, and a
statement of defendant’s duties and responsibilities in
connection with the business or employment; and

Any proposed change in the siructure of any business entity
owned or cantrolled by any individual defendant, such as
creation, incorporation, dissolution, assigament, sale,
merger, creation, dissolution of subsidiaries, proposed
filing of a bankruptey petition, or change in (he comporate
name or address, or any other change that may affect
compliance obligations arising out of this Order, thirty {30}
days prior to the effective date of any proposed change;
provided, however, that, with respect (¢ any such proposed
change about which such defendant leans less than thirty
{301 days prior to the date such action is to take place,
defendant shall notify the Commission as soon as is

practicable afier learning of such proposed change;

written report 10 the Commission, sworn to under penalty of perjury, setting forth in detail the

manner &nd form in which such defendant has complied and is complying with this Order. This

report shall include but not be limited to:

i

Defendant’s thea-current residence address, mailing addresses, and
telephone numbers;

Defendant’s then-current employment, husiness addresses

and telephone numbers, a description of the business

activities of each emplover, and defendant’s titde and

responsibilities for each employer;

FCBRDGMEST AND ORIDER - 1Y
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! 3 A copy of each acknowledgraent of receipt of this Grder
2 abtained by defendant pursuant (o Section X of this Order;
3 and
4 4. A statement desoribing the manner in which defendant has
5 comphied and is complying with the provisions of Sections
6 ithrough X of this Order,
7 L For a period of five {§) years from the date of eniry of this Order, upon writien
81 request by a representative of the Commission, shall submit additional written reports (under
9

ortly, if requested) and produce documents on fifieen (15) days” notive with respect o any

1§ conduct subject to this Order;

11 D For the purposes of Section X1 of this Order, "employment” includes the

121 performance of services as an employee, consultant, or independent contractor, and “employer”
131 includes any individual or entity for whom any defendant performs services as an employee,

141 consultant, broker, or independent contractor; and

13 E. For purposes of the compliance reporting required by Section X1 of this Order, the

161 Comumission is authorized to communicate directly with any defendant.

17 Xii.
i8 Access to Business Premises
12 IT 15 FURTHER ORDERED that, for a perivd of five (5) years from the date of entry of

20§ this Order. for the purpose of further determining compliance with this Order, defendants, their
21 suwccessors and assigns shall permit representatives of the Commission, within three {3) business
221 days of receipt of writlen notice from the Commission:

23 Al Access during normal business hours (o any office or facility storing docaments of

24§ any corporale defendant or any business where;

25 {H any individual defendant is the majority owner of the business or
26 directly or indirectly manages or controls the business, and where
27 (2 the business is engaged in offering or extending consumer credit,
28

JUDGMENT AND ORDER - 18
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In providing such access, defendants shall permit represeniatives of the Commission o inspect
and copy all documents relevant to any matter contained in this Order, and shall permit removal
by a third-party copying service of documents selected by Commission representatives, for a
period not to exceed five (5) business days, so that the documents may be copied: and
B. To interview the officers, directors, and employess. including all personne]
involved in responding to consumer complaints or inguiries, and all sales personnel, whether
designated as employees, consultants, indepeadent contractors or otherwise, of any business to
which Section XILA of this Order applies, concerning matters relating to compliance with this
Order. The person interviewed may have counsel present. Provided that, spon application of the
Cormmission and for good cavse showa, the Court may enter an ex parse order granting
immediate access 1o a defendant’s business premises for the purposes of inspecting and copying
all documents relevant to any matier contained in this Ovder.
XIIT.
Mailing of Notices
IT i8S FURTHER QRDERED that all notices and reports reguired by this Order shall be
made in writing and sent by first class United Siates mail to Regional Director, Federal Trade
Comunission, 915 Second Avenue, Suite 2896, Seattle, WA 98174,
X1v.
Continuing Jurisdiction of Court
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that this Court shall retain jurisdictios of this matter for all
purposes, including construction, modification, and enforcement of this Order.
XV,
Acknowledmment of Receipi of Order by Defendants
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, within fHive {5} business days afier receipt by each
defendant of this Order as entered by the Court, each defendant shall submit to the Commission a
truthful sworn siatemnent, in the form shown in Attachments C and 1 to this Qrder, that shall

acknowledge receipt of this Final Order,

JUDOMENT aND ORDER - 19

14419279 B: 11591 P: 2991 Page 63 of 98




[

E

E~ I - - S A ¥

L858 219WU0ETE TG

JUDGMENT IS THEREFORE ENTERED under the terms and conditions recited above,

each party to bear #is own costs and attormey fees incurred in connection with this action.

A
SO ORDERED, this &/ day of

The parties hereby stipulate and agree to the terms and conditions set forth above and

_ s 1099,

i
UM ?f} STATES BISTRICT JUDGE

consent to entry of this Stipulated Finsl Jodgment and Order,

DATE: 3 ula 14 1993
—

JUDGMENT AND ORDER -

20

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION:

B Dk

George i] »"chﬂéxi’ 7

/: Nadmr: S Simter
Attorneys for Plaingiff
Federal Trade Comumission
DEFENDANTS:

WASATCH CREINT CORP.

W&saﬁch Credit rp p’"” :
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WASATCH EQIIYYE?S CORP.

3. TaNeE
Pagein 21

INAME, TITUE]
Wasatch Equities Corp.

s,

WASATCH LOANS, INC.
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Chris L, Schrmutz

Attomey for Defendants

263 East 100 South, Suite 300
Salt Lake City, UT 8411 ¢
{8G1) 3640256

}? 3
265 East 100 South, Suite 300
Salt Lake City, UT 84111
{8011 3641100
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ATTACHMENT A

URITED STATES DISTRICT COUKRT
DISTRICT OF UTAH, CENTRAL DIVISION

FEDERAL TRADE COMMIASION,

Case No.
Plaintiff,
DECLARATION OF DAVID

v. EKNUDSON AS TO FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

WASATCOH CREDIT CORP., a Utah
Corporation, ef @l

{efendants.

Pursuant to 28 U S.C. & 1746, David Knodson declares as follows:
1. My name is David Kaudson, My current residence address is

. Tam over the age of eighteer. 1 have personal knowledge of

the facts set fannh in this Declaranon.

2. {am a defendunt in F7C v, Wasatch Credit Corp., e al. Case No,

{118, District Court, District of Utah).

i The information contained in the Financial Statements of Wasatch Credii Corp.,

Wasatch Equities Corp., Wasatch Loans, Inc., Wasaich Recovery Corp, and RHK Family Trust,

executed by me on . 1999, and provided to the Federal Trade Commission,

were frue, accurate, and complete on the date they were execied.

1 declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true amd correct.

Executed an , Oy

FOUDGMUNT AND QRDER - I3
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i ATTACHMENT B
2

UNFTED STATES DISTRICT COQURTY
3 DISTRECT OF UTaH, CENTRAL DIVISION
4
3 FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION,
6 Case No,
7 Plainifl,

DECLARATION OF HOLLY
g V. ENUDSON AS TO FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS
g WASATCH CREDIT CORFP. a Utab
Corporation, eral,

1
%
s o
! Diefendunts.

iz
13
14 Pursgant to 28 US.C § 17468, Holly Krudson declares as follows:
5! [§ My name 1s Holly Knadson, My current residence address is
| {A‘ o bum over the age of eighteen. § have personal knowledge of

¥
07 the facts set forth fn s Declaration.
8 2 I amn a defendant in FTC v, Wasarch Credit Corp., et al., Case No,
© {08 Dhistricr Court, Distriot of Litah).
a0k 3 The infermation contained in the Finuncial Statements of Wasateh Credit Corp.,
208
31 i Wasatch Bquities Corp., Wasatch Loans, Inc., Wasatch Recovery Corp., and RHK Family Trust,
2 exeputed by me on , 1998 and provided to the Federal Trade Commission,
g} Were frue, accuraie, and complete on the date they were exeated.
24
25 T declare under penalty of peryury that the foregoing is true and correct.

Executedon e

26 R
27
28

Holly Knudson

YOTFRAMENT ANT DRDER - 24
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! ATTACHMENT C
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

3 DISTRICT OF UTAH, CENTRAL DIVISION

4

3 FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION,

&

Case No.
v Flaintiif, \
DECELEARATION OF DAVID

g ¥ KENUDSON AS TO RECEIFT

) OF ORDER

g WASATCH CREDIT CORF., a Uhah

Corporation, ef al.,

10
b Defendants.
iz
13
14 Pursuant to 28 ULS.C § 1746, David Knudson declares as follows:
" L. My name i David Knadson, My current residence address is
16 e . Vam over the age of eighteen. 1 have personal knowledge of
- the facts set forth in this Declaration
" 2. 1 am a defendant w FTC v, Wasaich Credit Corp.. gt al,, Case No.
9 {U.S. District Court, District of Utah).
2 3 On . . 1999, 1 received a copy of the Stpulated Final Judgment
1 and Order, which was signed by the Honorable {name of U.S. District Judge] and entered by the
5| Couton___ 1999, on behalt of Wasatch Credit Corp., Wasatch Equities Corp.,
23 Wasatch Loans, Inc.. Wasateh Recovery Corp., and REE Family Trust. A true and comedt copy
4 of the Order 1 received is appended to this Declaration.
551 1 declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.
ae i Executedon _ , 1595,
i3
e David Knudson

JUDGMENT AND ORDTR - 05
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I ATTACHMENT D

>4

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COQURT

3 DISTRICYT OF UTAH, CENTRAL DIVISION
4

<

. FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION,

6 Case No.

. Plaimiiff,

DECLARATION OF HOLLY
8 Y. KNUDSON AS TO RECEIFY

OF QRDER
g} WASATCH CREDIT CORP., a Liab
Cosporation, ef al.,

10
11 \
Defendaras.
12
13
14 Pursuant to 28 1S § 1746, Holly Knudson declares as follows:
i

15 ‘ i My name is Holly Koudson. My current residence address is
16 . Lam over the age of eighteen, [ have personal knowledge of

3
1 the facts set forth i this Declaration.

+
I8 2. § am a defendant in FTC v. Wasatch Credit Corp., et al, Case No.
1% {118, District Count, Districs of Utah),
e 3 L L N 1999, { received a copy of the Stpuluted Final Judgment
20

2 and Order, which was signed by the Honorable [nane of U.5. Diswict Judge] and entered by the

2 Court O , 1999, on hehalf of Wasatch Credit Corp., Wasatch Equities Corp.,

23 Wasatch Loans, Inc., Wasatch Recovery Corp., and RHK Family Trust. A truc and correct copy

of the Order 1 received is appended o this Declaration.

24

95 I declar under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and comrect.
Executed o L1695,

268 '

27}

28 -

Hoily Knudson

PUOTEDOUONT ANDXOREDER DA
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tinited States Disgtrict Court

for the
District of Utah
August 24, 1§38

% * MAILING CERTIFICATE OF CLERE * *

Re: 2:%%-ov-005%9

True and correct copies of the attached were mailed by the clerk to the
following:

Ma. Carlie Chrigtensen, Esg.
TS ATTORNEY'S QFFICE

JEAX 9,5245985

Eathryr C. Decksr, Esy.
Federal Trade Commission

%15 Second Avenus, Suite 2836
sepattle, WA 583174
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Case 209-0r-00133-CW Document 323 Filed 01723715 Pagelllelll Pagedof¥

A0 2458 (Rev, 0911 Judgment dn o Cyiminai Dase
Bheet 3 — Supervised Helesse

Sudgment—Pags A& of 7

DEFENDANT:;  JAMIS MELWOOD JOHNSON
CASE NUMBER: DUTX2:00CRIU0133
SUPERVISED RELEASE

Upon ralease from imprisomment, the defendant shall be on supervized relesss for a wre of
38 months.

Thc defendant must report w the probation office in the disteict to whish the detendant iy released within 72 howrs of release foom the
cusiody of the Turean of PAsODS.

he defendant shall ot commdt another federal, siate or local crhmne.
The defendant shall not uslawiully possess a controlled substance, The dofndant shall refrain from ary wnlawiil use of 2 contredled
substanve. The def wndant shall subinit to one drug test wishin 18 days of reloage from imprisonment acd at jeist two periodic dmg tosis
theweafior, as dotermined by the conrt,

\?( The above drag m'stm;m condition is suspended, based on the court’s determipstion that the defendant poses a low risk of
Busure subsiance abuss. (Cheek ifonplionhle)

Wf The deiendant shall not possess a fircarmy, eranunition, destructive devize, or any other dengerous weapan. Cheet, If onplicatle }

Ei?f The defondent shall cooperats in the collsction of DNA a5 disected by the probation-officer. (Cheek Fuppfioadia)

rp Fhe delendant s shalf comply with the gequdrements of the Sex Offender Regisiration and Notfication Aot (42 U.S.0, § 15301, et seg.)
oag drﬁ:ceﬁd by the pmba*.u efficer, the “311 zan of Prisons, or soy state sex offendsr Tegisiration agensy in \a_m,h he Or she mucjt.b
works, is 4 stadend, or was sonvinad of valifving offenss.  fCheok ¥ qpelivable}

1 Vhe defendant shall participate in an approved progracm IP domestic vinlanes, Chaah i aanlicabie )

) Ififds fndgment lraposes a fipe or restihstion, it is & condition of suparvised releass that the defendans pay (n accordince with the
Scheduls of Paymens shaet of this fudpment,

The defendant must comply with = standard conditions drat have heog adopied by this court as well as with asy additional condigons
on ihse atlached page.
gt E ~y - Lral - IRt B -t Oy v
STANDARD CONPITIONS OF SUPERVISION
1y the defendant shall pot loave the judizial distriet without the permisaton of the conet or probation officer;

3y the defondars shall report to the probaticn officer in » manner snd Tequenoy drected by the cowet o probation affices;
1y the defendant shall answer muthfully all inquinies by the probation offfcer and follow the nstructions of the probation officer
4y the defendant shall support his or her dependents and meet other ity rasponsibilities;

%% the defendant shall work segularly w1 2 lawfud ocovpation, unless vxoused by the probaiion officer for schooling, watning, or other
sucspiabie reasons;

4y the dafendant shall nodly the probating officer af least ten days prior to any change in residence or employment;

i e defondant shail refiuin from excessive nse of alokal and shell oot ¢ purchiase, posseas, use, diatribate, or adminisier any
controlled substangs Or aay peraphemalis related o soy conrolied sulisiances, efcepl as presoribed by a physicism

B the defendani shall not frequent places whers contrelled substances are Mlagally sold, usad, disizthuted, or adminiswersd;

'“‘ime AR AT Shall nol ssdciats el et “'éxig EEEINY
felony, uniess pranted pavmission 4o do §o by the probalion officer;

10 the defendant shall peroait & probaid n officar to visit Bim or hee a2 any Sme at home or elsewhere and shall nermds sonfiscaion of any
contrsband {‘I\zst‘nm. i gl visw of the probation officer;

Li}  the defendant shall notify t’ham«:aimtim officer within seveuty-iwo hours of baing amested o guesiioned by a law enforcement officer;

123 the defendant shall non entie fnre any agresment to act 1y a3 Infonmer or o special agent of 8 law enforcement ayency withoul the
aermission of the court: and

13y as divected by the probatinn officer, the defandant shall notify thind parties of vicks that may be ccansioned by the defendant’s arinmnal
record ar pm’qon\ft Rigtory or charactoristios and shall permil the probation cffiver to make sush neifications and 1o soafinn the
defendar’s complisncs with such notification reguirer N, ‘

14)y The defendust shall submiz Bis o hov peuson, residences, oftice of vehicle to search, conducted by the probation offics 5t & reasonable dmeand ina
repsonabla mspner bagad wnon teasonable sugpicion of contaband or evidency of & violetion nf 4 condition of releasa; fallure to submit 10 5 search
may be gevtads for rpvoos
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Case 2.00-or-00133-CW Document 523 Fled D1723/15

AD2M43E {Rev. 611} Indgment in a Criminud Case
Sheet 30~ Suparvised Releass

DEFENDANT: JAMIS MELWDODR JOHNSON
CASE NUMBER: DUTX2:090RI00133

SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF SUPERVISION

1. The defendant is to infoem any employer or prospective smplaver of current canviction and supsrvision status,

2. Tho defendant shall provide the U.S. Probation Office complets aiccess io all business ang personal financial
information. g

3. The defendant shell miaintain not more than one personal and/or business checking/savings account and shatl niot
apen, mainiain, be a signatory on, or otherwise use any other financial institution account withaut the pricr approval of the
LS. Probation Offics,

4. The deferdant shall refeain from incuiring new credit charges or apening additianal lines of oredit unless in compliance
with any established payment schedule and obtaing the approval of the probation office.

5. The defendant shall not be employed by, affiliated with, own or contral, or otherwise participate, directly or idirectly, in
the business of money, including acoounting and raal asiate without the approval of the U.S, Probation Offics.
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C 209 0GR L35-0W Dooanent 528 FHled Q123715 PageliDghld Page 7oi7
AD4SE  [Rev 01T fudgrent in a Cdeinsd Case
Sheat & — Sehaduis of Foyimantz
Sudgment - Paga ¥ of 7

DEFENDIANT:  JAMIS MELWOOQD JOHNSOHN
CASE NUMDBER: DUTXEZQISCRICOTED

SCHEDULE OF PAYMENTS

.

Having assessed the defendant’™s ability o pay, payesent of the fotal crimins! monstary ponaliles is due as follows:

A Lumgswmpaymestofd 270000 jue imemediately, balsacs due
7 notlater than ) ,or
U] insccordanos VoS, O o Bior 7] Yheiow or
B U1 Payment o begin immediately fmey be combined with [71C, inor DOF below); or

faog, weakly, merehily, quarterdy) tealinents of §

€ {7 Paymentinegual ever # pariod of

o of this judgment; or

(e g months or veors), 10 SCONOMORCs (., 30 or 68 davs after the «

D3 Paymentinegual
(e.;_.{., Riopring o yeursl, 10 COMINSNOE e, 30 or 60 da yw after r“*ea

torm of supervision: or

(g, weskhy, mombiv, guariesly istalbmenty of 3 over a period off
oot Imprise nmu"tt o8

E 7 Payment dosdng the foom of supervizad releass will commencs withia fe.g, ¥ or &l days) aller release frum
imprisonment. The cours will set the vayiment plag based on an sssessment of the defendant’s ability to pay at that fime; or

¥ v]f Special insiroctions regarding the psyment of crimina} moeneiary penaltien ;

Defendant shall pay $10.00 per month towards restutlon whils incarcerated, Upon release, defendant shall pay
$400.00 par month or such other amount as determined by probation based upon defendant's financisl
gircometaniss.

1.

Uinleys the vourt has sxpressly orderad otherwise, i thi fudgment fmposes impriscnmeat, daviest of criminnl monetary ponaties ia due durlng
fnprisonment. Al erininal monelery ‘pc‘“a%r“ ceps s :."‘::y’ ity m:sﬁr‘ through the Federal Buven of Prisens’ lamate Financial

Responsthility Progeam, are made to e olerk of the court,

The defordnnt shal] recslve oredil for ail payments proviously made owaed any crlininal monsiary penaitiss fnpossd.

7 Jotnt and Savarsl

e ™ 2,

fendant and Co-Tiefendant Mamaes and Case Numbers fachiding defendont rumben), Total Amount, foint and Sevenal Amount,
un(a wn::%po.mim& payes, i sppropriate.

O] The defendent shall pay the cost of prosegation.
[} The defendent shall pay the folflowing cowrt zost{s):

T3 The defandant shald forfiit the defondunt’s Interest in the Rollowing property o the Unlied Statew;

Paymoents shail be applied in e following opder: (1) aasesament, (1) restituti mprmup::?, {3} restitution fnterest, (4} fne poncipal,
a8,

{5Y fina inforast, {8) commauniny restitution, (73 penalile

b

and (8} ooats, tacluding cost of greseontion and cotin Codts.
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JOHN W HUBER, Urdted States Attomey (#7226)

ALLISON IP. MOON, Assistant United States Altorney (#13204)
Artorpeys for the United States of Arerica

T South Man Street, Suite 1800

Salt Lake City, Urah 841112176

Telephome: (801} 524 5682

alisen.moon @ usdop.gov

INTHE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DHSTRICT OF UTAH

UNITED STATES OF AMERICAL Case Mo, 208-CR-00133

Plazniidt, RESPONSE TO BEFENDANTS MOTION
TOTERMINATE RESTITUTION

Vi, REPORTING OBLIGATION TOTHERE LS,
ATTORNEY, AND FOR OTHER

JAMIS MELWOGOH JOHNSON, MISCELLANEOUS RELIEF (DOCKET NO.
543}

Defendant.
Honorable Clark Waddoups

The Uinited Stues, through the undersigned counsel, hereby respords to Deferdant Jamis
Melwood Johnson's moton of August 7, 2020, requesting that the Cowrt teratnutie hus obligation
o provide financial information o the Lintted States Attorney’s Office o fueidate the collection
and enforcement of bis restitulion debt, as well as othee miscelanvoas reell’ For the following
reasons, the Court should deny My, Johoson™s motion in #is entirety, exeept that the Usated States
agrees that his rnonthly payments Loy the sonths of June, July, asd August, 2028 may be reduced

from 550 o $10.

1% Defendam’s Motion,

Page 1 of 16
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L. STATEMENT OF FACTS

I fre Miareh 2011, & Jury Tound My, Johnson guilty of seven counts of Mail Fraud

L1 one count of Conspiracy to

. and fen counts of Money Laundering (18

' Following his conviction. the Court sentenced him to five months’
imprisenment o ran concurrent with the sentence in Case No. 031700056 hefore the Fowth
Judicial Diswict Court for Millard County, and thirty-six months” superaised release. The Court
also ordered Mr. Johnson to pay restitution of $13.282.00 to Bank of America and a special
assesstient of 52,700,003
2. For the Schedule of Payroents, the Court ordered Mr. Johnson o pay the special
assessment in a lap som pavaent of $2,700.00, due fromediatel v, and restitution as follows:
Defendant shalt pay 51000 per month towards restitution while
incarcerated. Upon release, defendant shall pay 54006.00 per month
or such other amount as determined by probation based apon
defendant’s financial circurnsiances.?
3 (i June 28, 2018, while under the supervision of the United States Probation
(Hitee, My, Johnson entered into a Stipulaiion {or Installment Payments (Stipulation} wherein he
agrecd o ceriain wrms paraphrased as follows:

¢ To pay 350.00 per month towards his erinuaal monslary penalties;

& Verdiot, Magely J8, 20118

Tudpment in o Crinninat Case (00, Seprember 4,

Puge 2of i
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To perigdically submit hpancial statements al the end of two vears and vearly
thersafter so that the United States can evaluate and modity {or move the
Court to soodify) bis payment schedude us appropriaie;

» Tn immediately notity the LS, Attoraey’s Gtfice and the Court of any change
1 address, change in cm;.alnyzmm., or significant change in econamic
{:is{:t;m‘n«;tain-:i:;

e That upon notice of a change in economic circumstances his pavment
svhedule could be adjusted;

s Thal i addifion o s monthly payment obliganos, the Ustied States could
place him on the Treasury Offset Program (TOP) and the State Finde
Program, which offset any federal and state payments that are owed to lum
and apply the fonds 1o his debt

s That it he fails to strictly comply with the terms of the agreemeat, the United
States may move the Court ex parfe for appropriste miwi 10 saisly the

judgment.”
A, The Couwrt then entered the instalbment Pavioent Order on July @, 2018.7 thereby
modifying the resutution paviment schedule set forth in My Iohnson’™s JOC.
5. The United States added Mt Johnson to TOP and State Pinder on Asgust 17,

2G18, There (s some indication in United Stmes Atomey™s Office Financial Litigaton Uinit's
{FLUY records that the deemsion o place Mr. Johnson on TOF and State Finder wax hased o part
on hus fatiore to make a payment i Augost 2018, However, ever if Mr. Johnson had timely
made ail payments, FLU wouold stlf have had authority to place bun on TOP and State Tinder
putsuant (o the Stipulation and the Installment Payment Ovder.

6. Onee Mr, Johnson was added (o TOP, Treasury took the following offsets and

Stiplatios for instalment Payments, June 28 2018, F op MM, Sohason did
not havi: 1o excoaie the 2018 Stipulatiin, He did so becasse he coubd aof pay the 3400 manthly payment ordered
by the Cout v the Judgment and asked Probation that i be reduced to $30 7 month, ™,

L dmstaliment Payont Order, July 9, 2018,

Page 3 of 16
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applied them to My, Johmson™s monctary penattl

«  Qctober 3, 2018 — 18180 offset with S168.6R applicd 1o debt and $13.42
appiied w administrative fee.

¢ November 2, 2008 ~ $181.80 offser with S1068.68 applicd 1o debi and §13.12
apphied to 23.{5 ministrative fee.

= December 3, 28 - 318180 offset with $168.68 applied to debr and $13.12
apphied o administrative fee.

o Junuary 3, 208 - 518720 oflset with $174.0% applied to debt and $13.12
apphe i to a—;d minisirative fee.

7 in fate December, 2018, My, fohnson complained to FLU that the offsets were
causing b financial hardship. Bue o this hardship, the United States voluntaniy removed Mr.
Johmson from TOP and State Finder on December 28, 2018, However, if takes several weeks o
process the removal of a debior from TOF, andd his remerval rooy TOP was not processed o tume
0 avord the Janoary 2019 ofte

8. After FLU removed Mr. Johnson from TOP, Mr. Jolnsen repeatedly requested
that FLU return to him the above offsets. On Febroary 27, 2020, FLU notilted Mr. Johnson that
it would make o one-tme exception and wonrld return the offsets 1o bim, but warned that ifhe
defaudted on his monthly paymers obbigation, FLU will pizce hio back on TOP. On Muay 10,
2019, the FLU sobmitied a request to the Department of Justice Debt Accounting Operatons
Group to retarn 5680012 (he sien of all four offsets Jess the adoimstrative fees) to My, Johmon,
and the offsels were retormed 10 hizn oo or abowd June 7, 2019, To date, FLU has nol placed My,
Johnson back on TOP or State Finder, and no sabsegquent offyets have been taken.

2. According o FLU s records, Mr. Johnson has made the following payments since

July 2018, when the installment Payment Order was entered:

Page 4 of 1o
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TINRAAGIR SHLOH BE200% SHLOG
QIERS2088 S50.00 QIO SS0LH)
I/30/2018 S50.00 HWA2019 550,00
TIOR8 S3.00 FIA2009 S50.00
VA28 550007 P02 $30.00
2282004 SELO0 RTA20 S50.00
2014 S30.00 020 5100.00
AVS2019 S 443072020 $30.00

6212019 S50
TIIR2014 SO0

1. On July 3%, 2020, FLU agreed 1o suspend Mr. Johason's restitouion payment
nbligation for the months of June, July, and Avgust 2020, with payments 10 resume in Sentenmiber
20200 Per ity agreernent with Mr. Johnson, FLU has oot and will not re-enreli i on TOP or
State Finder for norepayment for these nuwnths,

il The Lintted Siates has thoroughty advised Mro Johnson of his rights and
responsibilities regarding his restitntion debt.” In particudar, the United Staies bas explained 1o
Mr. Johoson on 1wo occasions thul his doty to report Jds financial information to FLLU after his
tertt of supervision is based i statute. ¥ Yet Mr, Johnson persists n arguing that, bt for the
Stipuiation that he entered 1 2018, he would have no such obligation,

12 Mr. Johmnson's term of sapervision recently expired on Augest 7, 20207

TR A Bonadd to My folinson of @30020200 B B - Bmail ee Me Johason of J172020: Bx, C - Email o My
Johoson of TG0,

A - Bmai! we Me, Johnson of /302020 (quoting 18 ULS.O0 § 30640k ) regurdsng detondant’s duly o anidy the
court and the Attoraey General of any matensl cha in the ugf(:mmﬂi‘sa poonamic circymstagoesy s, O Banit
b Mr. Johnson of 72002020 Y our daty o disclose your Brancial information aficr supervision is hased in
statate. See 18 USO8 3068407

—:i\

Page 5 of {6
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I,  AUTHORITY AND ARGUMENT

A. Congress has granted broad autherity e the United States to enforce restitution
judemenis and o conduct financial discovery fo faciliiate collections.

Mr. Johnson objects to the Uniled States” abilivy to seek financial discovery fromn hiro
after supervision, and argues streruoasty that sach aothority would novmally end with the
termination of supervised relesse but tor the Stpuiation be sigoed in 2018 in which he agreed (o
provide fnaneial disclosures after iwo vears, and annually thereafter, Mr. Johnson is mistaken in
s betief that the United States” authority to seck financial discovery arises solely from the
Stipulation. Had he never signed the Stipulation. the United States would still have broad
statutory authority to enforce the restiiution order, and fo seck financial discovery o faciiitate
siweh enforcement., for the entire life of the jedgnent.

A jury convicied My, Iohnsen of twendy-seven counts of various fimancizl erimes, all of
which were orires against property under Tile 185 His charges are therefore covered by the
Mandwrory Victin Restitation Act (MVRA), and restitution {or Mr. Johnson™s victin was
prandated in the full amount of bis victim's Toss without regard 10 Mr. Jobason's ability o pay.’
A restiution judgment ordered pursuani o the MVRA “ferminaie]{s} on the date that is the Iafer

of 20 vears front the entry of judgment or 24 years after the release from froprisonment of the

{m an om

se fgainst pmpvr\y l'miu ;his iatde, oy

uﬂd{‘r seetien 4 ifmi; ui the !..tm miim 'wha Lanees a\cs (21 (.8 5.0, 83600;, including any offense commiitted by
fraud or deceat™)

r ol rx \Umimu undder this seenon <hall be ssuaed and enforced in accordance with
S Cn each ovder of restitntion, the court shall order vestitution to each
viwaar 1 the fll amoang of cach ;mmz EY insw« as detrmined by the court and without constderation of the

N

ecnnemic cucumaignoes of the delendant, ™

Page 6 of 16
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person ordered to pay restiiution.” 32 15,0, 3 36130

The United States is charged with the responsibility to collest restitution debts. 'S Mr,
Johosen reguests that the Court order the United States to “relingoish @l financial information
disclosed to FLU by Mr. Johrson cluding withoat Boitation his social security information and
nunber, hiy bank account, welephone number and address.”™ However, the Court 15 actually
reguired W provide much of this infermation 1o the Attorney General for any order of restitution
over $100.7 The United States’ aithority o seek financial discovery is found is several places in

the United States Code and the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. 1$ a1 provides,

“The United States may enforce a judgroent imposing o fine! Pl in accordance with the practices
and procedures for the enforcement of a civit judgment snder Federal law or State aw "
Strnglarly, 18 ULS.C0 8 360400 0DEAY proviades, Y01y Ap arder of restitution may be endforced by
the United Siates in the manner provided for imosabohapter Cof chapter 227 and subchapter B of
chapter 229 of this ttle or (131 by all other available and reasonable means.”

The United States enforces resutution debis prumartly under the Federal Debt Collection

Procedures Act (FDOPA)LY which “provides the exclusive civil proceduses for the United

e Avorney Geaeral shall be responsible {or collection of s unpaid ne o redtiuiion
concerning which g cortifiwation has been sssupd as provided in subsestion Th )

© ) Applicability to veder of restitugion. - In accordance with section 30040 IRAY of 1”“’ titde, il provisions
;}i ihis section are aviiahde w the United States for the enforcemeni of an order of restiteton.” §

Page 7 of 16
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States (1o recover a judgment on a debt” 4

H

provides, “Except as provided otherwise o this chapter, the Faderal Rules of Civil Procedure

P

shall apply with respect to actions and proceedings under this ehaptee” Under bed, 8 Cliv, §

s o aid of the judgment or execution, the judgment creditor . . o may obtain discovery

Fay
L

- T - . -
from any person’ U l—including the judgment deblor

restitution order shatl provide that the delendant shall noufy the court and the Attorney Generad
of any matenial change in the defendant’™s coonormic clrcumsiances that might affect the
defondant™s abiity to pay restituton,” Afer notce of the change o the defendant’s victims, the
Court ynay, “on i1 own mmotion, o the moedion of any party, inclading the victim, adjust the
pavment schedule. or requiee immediate payment i Rl as the interests of justice reguire.”
Congress has granfed broad authorify w the United States o use all reasonable means to
enlorce restituuon judgroents, This authonty includes the road discovery powers provided
under the Federal Roles of Ohvil Procure, as well as a mandate on the deferudant to report
material changes in bis or her economic cirowmnstances to the court and the Attomey General,
Mr. Iohason's arzument that the Unlied States” authority 1o seek Bnancial discovery arises solely
fromn his Stipulation is incorrect. Furthermore, he has not oited any authority under which the

Clourt could enjoin the United States from seeking Tinancial discovery. For these reasons, the

Yo Under tns rule. tte Uoited States i eatitled w0 mdbormanon repacding a defendant’s spouse™s fnatcial
intormazion, Uiab B3 ndi 3 community propesty siate, and te Unied Stares dees nop tse this jeformaiios @
enforce the restiintion judpment spaingt the defendaat’s spowse™s propernny i the defendant restdes in Uiab, Rather,
the Uinited Srates sses this informatioo o determine the defeadant’s ability o pay restitoion, as any figancial
suprovt he or sho receiven from Ris o hoes spouse & a “inancial resodree .. of e defendant™ that mast be
Factoved {nto the anabysis of the defendant’s ability to pay restitntion ander ST ISR EAY

Page Bol 16
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Crart shouid deny My, Johnson's reguest o terminate Ris obligation to repaort s financial
wiformanon o the United Staes Atomey’s Office,
B. The United States has only gsed TOP and State Finder as Mr. Johnson agreed, and
voluntarily removed My, Johnson from these programs and returned all offsels to

Bim upon his requoest.

TOP 15 avthorized under

s The Nattonwide Contrad Intake Facility {RCIF) ssues TOP Notices as a
mafier of course when new debls are opened 1o the Copselidated Debt Collection Sysiem
(OIS, the Uhnted Statey” debt mamagement program. FLUT s records indicate that w TOP
Notiee was sent 1o Mr. Jobason on Qcteober 7, 2014, The Stipulation that My, jolnson entered
it on June 28, 2018, provides 1o relevans part

in addinon {0 the regular monthly payment set fonth soparagraph 2

above, fohnson agrees that the United States may submit his debt

i the above captioned case to the State of Utah and the U5,

Penariment of Treasury for mciusion i the State Pinder Program

arad the Treasury Gifset Program. Joknson undersiands that under

these programs, any sate or federal payiment that he would

novmaily receive may be offset and appliad toward the debt o the

above-captioned case.”®
Based upon the Stipulation, the Court entered an Instillroent Paymoent Ovder on Judy 7, 2018, tha
contains substantially the same langeage. ™ After the order was entered, the Uniied Staies

enrolied My Johrson in TOP and Stade Finder and began offSetting his Social Security henefiis,

Ofsets were taken fram My, Johnson's Bocial Security benelits o Qctober, November, and

Page B of 16
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December, 2018, and Januacy, 2019, In late December, 2018, Mr. Iohoson commplained o FLU
that the offsels were cansing Rt lnancial bardship, and FLU voluntarily removed Mr. Iohnson
from TOP und State Finder,*" FLU also luter returned the four affsets thal were taken, Mr,
Johnson has not beon placed on TOPF or State Finder again since he was romoved in December,
MR,

I My Johnson was unaware that his Sooial Secority benefits would be offuet, his
ignorance was due solely to his own lack of due diligeace. The Supulanon clearly states on its
fuce that offsets will be taken in addition to the regular monthly instaliment payments, Had he
read the Stipulation, or had i read to him, he would have understood that his Social Security
benefits would be offset through TOP.

The courts appear to be unardmoeas i holdig that g peoson who,
having the capacity and an opportunity o read @ contract, is not
misled as 0 By contents and who sesains no confidential
relationship to the other party cannot avold the contract on the

ground ol mistake if be sigas it withoo! reading 318, at keast in the
ahsence of special clreumstances excusing his faiture fo read it

B Mr, Johnson argues that he is
fegally blird, and that he way vorepresended at the time that he signced the Supuelation, znd
therefore he could not read the Stipuiation and 15 nof responsitde for knowing s contents,
However, Mr. Johnsor is himself o trained attorney,”" and he certainly understood the risks of

entering into an agreernent without readiog it. Furthermore, he does not olaim that he was dended

* Remaovals ke soveral weeks to grosss, and M Johinsor’s removal om TOP was pot processed i ime
avigd the Jamuary 209 offset,

4 peod0F 4 CAFr release. My Jobmson’s only seuroe ol ipcome was 1 %1380 Socud Soouoty
check. He could not work becasse hoe was visually vmpadved and his eriminad charges inhebated cmployers, and he
had lowt has faw Hoonse. ™.

Page 10 ol 16
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ant opporturuty 1o have the Siipulation read to i before signing i, or that he lacked the capacity
(o understand its ferros. Therefore, if Mr. Johnson was truly nnaware of the terms of 1he
Stipudation, he has only himself 1o blame. In any event, blame cannot fairly be placed on the
United States Antorney’s Office where no representative of the Office was present when Mr,
Johason signed the Stipudation,

H Mr. Johnson defaulis on his payiment schedule of 350 per momth, the Uniled States has
a statutory right W place hirp back on TOP and State Finder, "Notwithstanding any installment
schedule, when a Gine or paypient of restifution s in detauli, the eniire amount of the line or

restitution is doue within 30 days after notfication of the defagit, subject 10 the provisions of

“LAdn order of restitation made pursuant 1o seclions . ..
36E3A, or 3664 of this title, s a lien in favor of the Untted States on all property and rights o
property of the person Hned as if the Hability of the person fined were a lability for a tax

assessed under the Internal Revenue Code of 19867 IR UUS O % 3613 Therefore, the Linited

States has aoted completely within its nghts in advisimg Mr. Johnson that if he defasits on tos
monthiy payment schedule the United States may place him back oa TOP.

FLLU does have g practee of requiring defendants who owe restitution o produce a
financial staterment, and to enter into an instatiroent payment plan, as a condition of the United
States” consent o eardy termiination of supervision. FLU also strongly encourages defendunts 1o
ertter into stipuiated installment pavinent agreements hefore their term of supervision expives.
This practive serves several purposes: (1) 11 ansure that any existing pavment schedule is adjusied

iR

approprigtely pursaant o i3

cand in Bight of the §

(2 factors: (23 91

fucilitates a searnless transttion of enforcernent resporsibilities frorn the Probation Oftee 1o

Page L] of 10
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i6

FLU and (3) it rerminds defendants of their ongoing ebligation to pay restitution post-
sapervision, In most cases, defendants readily accept the payment plans FLU offers. On the rare

occasion that a defendant objects o the proposed plan, FLU advises the defendant that, in the

U.S.C. § 30640k). and the defendant can argue to the Cour for the payment terms he or she
believes are reasonable, Although the United States reguires having an up-to-dale payment
schedule in place as a condition of its counsent 1o early rerminarion from supervision, the
undersigned counsel is nol aware of any instance where the Unifed States sought to extend
supervision beyond the term that was ordered af sentencing to obiain a stipulated payment
agreement.® Such actions arc not part of FLU s practices.

. The petition {o revoke Mr. Golf"s supervised release was brought by the Probation
(Htice, not the 1nited Stafes Atforneys’ Office.

in his motion, Mr. Johnson discusses at length the case of United States v, Brian Goff,
arul alleges ihat the United States Attorney’s Office initiated revocation proceedings against My,
Goff to induce bim to sign a stipulated instaliment payment agreement. ™ The case of Mr. Goff is
not presenily before this Court. Furthenmore, the petition (o revoke Mr. Goft's supervised release
was brought by the Probation Office, not the Uniled States Attorney’s OfTice, and the allegations

giving rise to the petition are set forth therein.® Other than the petition, which Mr. Johnson

3 See Section C responding to Mr. Johinson’s allegations reganding Brian Golf,

7 g

until he complied, the USAUT ided a baseless Probation violation thregtoning to violate bis probation and
reincarcerate him.™)

Dy - A PR T H
= LR GG436 HON, Bocket No
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incorrectly attributes o the United States Attorney’s Office, Mr. Iohnson's allegations all pertain
10 actions taken by Mo Goff s Probation Officer. ™ These allegations therefore do nol support a
finding that the United Stwtes Auorney’s Olfice has engaged 1n abusive practices to enfiwes and
collect restitution debts,

. Mr. fehnsen’s restitation order is a final judgment, and the Couri should deny his
reqguest for a hearing to relifigate the amount of the order and Bank of America’s
statis as a viclim.

Mr. Johnsor asks “{tihe Court . .. ©0 set a hearing 1o consider the accuracy of the
restitution under newly discovered evidence and to consider the victim status of Bark of
America and to consider whether the Judgment for Restitution has been satisfied.”™ Mr.
Johnson alse asks the Court to “Laft the seal and consider Mr, Johnson™s Mation Re: Misconduct
of the Viciim, Bank of America and the US. Attormney and newly discovered evidence.” ! There
are several sealed documends on the docket, and it is unciear 1o which seal hes reforring, bat o

the extent that the seal he seeks to Y protects the victim's rights and privacy, Mr. Iohnson’s

request show iran
My, Johnson fails o eaplain why he believes the restitution order was entered in crror, or

o produce any evidence w support his claim. Although he refers 1o several exhibits in his

Motion, no exhibiis were filed with hus Motion or served on the United States. He also fads w

A et victim fas the following oghts: (13 The right w be reasenably protected v om tm a-xum.d (B Thae
vight Lis be reaied with fuirncess and with respect for the victing's digaity and privacy.”

Page 130016
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gy anvorder of restitution s a inal jodgment. and the amount of the judgment cannot
tater be amended except under extremely Hmuted circumstinces, none of which apply here. The
Court should therefore deny Mr, Johnson's request for a hearing to relitigate the restingion arder.

¥, United States agrees that the Court can reduce Mr. Johnson’s payvments from $56 1o
$16 for the moaths of Jone, July, and August, 2626,

My, dobnson asks the Court (o reduce his mombdy payments from S5 to $10 for the
months of fune, July, and Augast, 20200 The United States does not obiect to this reguest, and in

fact already agreed 1o saspend My Johison's pavoent obligation for these months, Under 18

Ja the Court pray amernd & defendant’s restifution payment scheshale upon notice
of arpaterial change 1n the defendant™s economie circinstances as the interests of justice
reqoire. M Johnson™s fosnoial statement does oot revest a change in his ccononic
chroamstanees, por does he argue that s cirvumstances have changed. However, Mr Johmson’s
financial staterment does eveal that be has very limdted income and that he 8 sinving to live
within his means. He has also Garly consistently patd $30 per month as ordered, and for these
reasons PLU decided in its discretion 1o gram Mr, Johnson™s reguiest for & emiporary suspeosion
of s pavment obligation. For these reasons, the Unsted Siates bereby stipolades that Mr.
fohnson™s puvment obligations shoudd be redoced o 510 par month, or suspended entirely, for

the months of June, Tuly, and Aggust 2620, s the Court sees it

=
7
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Hi. CONCLUSION
For all the foregoing reasons, the United States respectfully requesis that the Court deny
all of the relief that Mr. Johnson requests in his motion. except that the United States agrees the
Court may suasperd or redoce Mr, Jobnson's monthly payment obligution from 330 to 510 for the
manths of June, July, and August 2020
DATED this 12" day of August, 2020,
JOHN W. HURER

United States Allorney

fuf Allison J P, Moon
ALLISON 1P MOOGN
Assisiant Umited Siates Attorney
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

T hereby eertify thar Lam an Assistant Untied States Attorney for the Ehstrict ol Utah and
that copies of the United States’ BESPONSE TO DEFENDANTS MOTION TO TERMINATE
RESTITUTION REPORTING OBLIGATION TGO THE US. ATTORNEY, AND FOR OTHER
MISCELLANEOUS RELIEF (DOCKET NG, 343), and the exhibats therelo were served upon the
parties by placing & copy of same in the United States mail, postage prepaid, this 12V day of
August, 2020, addressed as folows:

Jarnis M., Johnson

3578500 E #303
Salt Luke City, UT 84111

A Allison S8 Moo
Allison J.P. Moon, AUSA
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STATES PROBATION (FEFICE
FOR THE DISTRICT OF Lran

Report on Qffender Under Supervision
Name of Oifender: Jamis Melwond Johpson Dochet Number: 3:09CREQ8133 0

MNume of Setencing udicial (B3fcen Honorable Clark Waddoups
Senter ULS. PBistrict Judge
Draie of Onigingl Sentence:  Anpust 26, 2014

Bail Fraud
Origanal Offonsa: Wire Fraud (2 Counts)
Coaspiracy to Commit Mail Fraod
Mosey Laundering (2 Counts)
Ciriginal Sentence: 5 Menths Burean of Prisons Custody? 36 Months Supervised Redease

Type of Sopervision: Sapervised Release Current Supervision Began: August 8, 2617

SUPERVISION SUMMARY

The defendant™s termy of supervized refease 18 schedulad w expre Aagust 7, 20200 A the e of sentencing, be
wis orderad w0 pay 2 52,700.00 special assessment fee and S5 28200 in respiudion. The speoial assessmeand foe
haw w halance of BE3R0.00 and be owes SPA282 60 i resiniution. The defendant has enterad into a stipuladed
paviment agreement with the ULS. Attarney’s Uilice, Fuwnciad Litgation Unit, agreeing o pay 330400 per
month weard his fine and restifuiion. Except for the outstanding balances, sil other supervision issues have
Been satisled and the defendant 15 viewed a8 o low nsk ko engage i Feture crominal aotbvity,

It 2 respectfully reconunended that no adverse action be taken regarding the defendant not salisfving the
restitubion during his term of sugersision. I s forther recommended that Tas fenn of sapervisad refense he
ablowed weexpire on Angast 7, 2020, with restitution owing,

1 the Ceart desires more mibrmation or ancther course of achion, please contact me at B01-535-2720,
[ declare under penalty of perjuary that the foregobmy s frae and correct,

I

(o oty P

by Casey Habdy Franson
LLS. Prohation Advmnistraiive Aussistant
July 28, 2070

THE COURT:

B4 Agproves the request noted ghove

7 Denies the rogquest poted ahove

L hher

Honorable Clwk Waddoups

Senlor Unitesd States Distret Judge

Revisad 13047
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